
AVENIR 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DISTRICT 

CITY OF PALM BEACH GARDENS 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

& PUBLIC HEARINGS 
JANUARY 26, 2023 

12:30 P.M. 

Special District Services, Inc. 
The Oaks Center 

2501A Burns Road 
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410 

www.avenircdd.org 
561.630.4922 Telephone 
877.SDS.4922 Toll Free
561.630.4923 Facsimile



AGENDA 
AVENIR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

2501A Burns Road  
Palm Beach Gardens, Florida 33410 
Call-in #: 877-402-9753; 4411919  

REGULAR BOARD MEETING & PUBLIC HEARING’S 
January 26, 2023 

12:30 p.m. 
 
 

A. Call to Order  

B. Proof of Publication………………………………………………………………………………...Page 1 

C. Establish Quorum  

D. Additions or Deletions to Agenda 

E. Comments from the Public for Items Not on the Agenda 

F. Approval of Minutes 

1. December 15, 2022 Regular Board Meeting……………………………………………………Page 2 

G. Public Hearing – Levy Non Ad-Valorem Assessments – Avenir (AA3) 

1. Consider Approval of Revised Fourth Amendment to the Fifth Supplemental  
Engineer’s Report (AA3)………………………………………………………………………Page 9 

2. Consider Approval of Preliminary First Supplemental Special Assessment  
Methodology Report – Infrastructure Project for Special Assessment Bonds (AA3)…………Page 86 

3. Proof of Publication……………………………………………………………………………Page 109 

4. Receive Public Comments on Levying Assessments within Avenir (AA3) 

5. Approval of the Avenir (AA3) 

6. Consider Resolution No. 2023-01 – Levying Assessments within Avenir (AA3)……………Page 113 

H. Public Hearing – Clubhouse Rates 

1. Proof of Publication…………………………………………………………………………...Page 114 

2. Receive Public Comments on Amended Club Rates 

3. Consider Resolution No. 2023-02 – Amending Club Rates……………………………….....Page 116 

I. Old Business 

J. New Business 

1. Consider Ratification of Agreement for Professional Services Relating to Avenir Spine  
Road 5 Seacoast Utility Authority Easements (Caulfield & Wheeler)………………..……..Page 119 

K. Clubhouse 

1. Clubhouse Management Update…………………………………………………………......Page 123 

L. Administrative Matters 

M. Board Member Comments 

N. Adjourn 

 



Page 1



AVENIR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
DECEMBER 15, 2022 

 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
The December 15, 2022, Regular Board Meeting of the Avenir Community Development District (the 
“District”) was called to order at 12:32 p.m. in the offices of Special District Services, Inc. located at 
2501A Burns Road, Palm Beach Gardens, Florida 33410. 
 
B. PROOF OF PUBLICATION 
 
Proof of publication was presented which indicated that notice of the Regular Board Meeting had been 
published in The Palm Beach Daily Business Review October 17, 2022, as part of the District’s Fiscal 
Year 2022/2023 Meeting Schedule, as legally required.  
 
C.  ESTABLISH A QUORUM 
 
A quorum was established with the following Supervisors in attendance: Chairperson Virginia Cepero, 
and Supervisors Daniel Lopez and Roberto Horowitz and it was in order to proceed with the meeting.  
 
Also in attendance were: Jason Pierman of Special District Services, Inc.; District Counsel Michael 
Pawelczyk of Billing, Cochran, Lyles, Mauro & Ramsey, P.A.; District Engineer Carlos Ballbe of Ballbe 
& Associates (via phone); and Clubhouse Reps Rick Salvatore, Gina Sanchez and Sherry Ward. 
 
Also present were:  District Engineer Carlos Ballbe of  Ballbe & Associates (via phone); Developer 
Representative Rosa Schechter (via phone); Andrew Karmeris of Special District Services, Inc.; Tanya 
McConnell of Avenir Development; and Steve Sanford of Greenberg Traurig. 
 
D.  ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 
There were no additions or deletions to the agenda. 
 
E.  COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA 
 
There were no comments from the public for items not on the agenda. 
 
F. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 1.  November 14, 2022, Regular Board Meeting 
 
The minutes of the November 14, 2022, Regular Board Meeting were presented for consideration. 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Lopez, seconded by Mr. Horowitz and passed unanimously approving the 
minutes of the November 14, 2022, Regular Board Meeting, as presented. 
 
G. OLD BUSINESS 
 
There were no Old Business items to come before the Board. 

Page 2



 
H. NEW BUSINESS 
 1.  Consider Master Special Assessment Methodology Report (AA3) – 2023 Project 
 
Mr. Karmeris presented the Master Special Assessment Methodology Report (AA3) – 2023 Project, noting that 
it had been reviewed by bond counsel, district counsel and the bond underwriter.  He further noted that a 
preliminary supplemental report and final report would be created.   
 
A motion was made by Ms. Cepero, seconded by Mr. Lopez and unanimously passed approving the 
Master Special Assessment Methodology Report (AA3), 2023 Project, as presented. 
 
 2.  Consider Resolution No. 2022-14 – Delegation Resolution – Avenir 2023 (AA3) 
 
Mr. Sanford presented Resolution No. 2022-14, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022–14 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE AVENIR 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT (THE “DISTRICT”) HEREBY 
AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE IN ONE OR MORE SERIES OF ITS NOT 
EXCEEDING $100,000,000 AVENIR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT SPECIAL ASSESSMENT BONDS, SERIES 2023 (ASSESSMENT 
AREA THREE – MASTER INFRASTRUCTURE PROJECT) (THE “2023 
BONDS”), TO FINANCE CERTAIN MASTER PUBLIC INFRASTRUCTURE 
WITHIN ASSESSMENT AREA THREE OF THE DISTRICT; DETERMINING 
THE NEED FOR A NEGOTIATED LIMITED OFFERING OF THE 2023 BONDS 
AND PROVIDING FOR A DELEGATED AWARD OF SUCH 2023 BONDS; 
APPOINTING THE UNDERWRITER FOR THE LIMITED OFFERING OF THE 
2023 BONDS; APPROVING THE FORM OF AND AUTHORIZING THE 
EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A BOND PURCHASE AGREEMENT WITH 
RESPECT TO THE 2023 BONDS; APPROVING THE FORM OF AND 
AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A NINTH 
SUPPLEMENTAL TRUST INDENTURE GOVERNING THE 2023 BONDS; 
APPROVING THE APPLICATION OF THE MASTER TRUST INDENTURE 
DATED AS OF MAY 1, 2018 BY AND BETWEEN THE DISTRICT AND 
REGIONS BANK, AS TRUSTEE WITH RESPECT TO THE 2023 BONDS; 
APPROVING THE FORM OF A PRELIMINARY LIMITED OFFERING 
MEMORANDUM AND AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY 
OF A FINAL LIMITED OFFERING MEMORANDUM; APPROVING THE 
FORM OF AND AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A 
CONTINUING DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT, AND APPOINTING A 
DISSEMINATION AGENT; APPROVING THE APPLICATION OF 2023 BOND 
PROCEEDS; AUTHORIZING CERTAIN MODIFICATIONS TO THE 
ASSESSMENT METHODOLOGY REPORTS AND ENGINEER’S REPORT; 
PROVIDING FOR THE REGISTRATION OF THE BONDS PURSUANT TO 
THE DTC BOOK-ENTRY ONLY SYSTEM; AUTHORIZING THE PROPER 
OFFICIALS TO DO ALL THINGS DEEMED NECESSARY IN CONNECTION 
WITH THE ISSUANCE, SALE AND DELIVERY OF THE 2023 BONDS; AND 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

Page 3



Mr. Sanford noted that the resolution would be amended to reflect a not-to-exceed amount of $100 
Million.  He further explained that the resolution sets parameters for the bond issuance, specifically that 
they be issued up to $100 Million, may be issued in multiple series, and sets the maturity, underwriter 
discount, and maximum interest rate of 6%.  The resolution also approves the bond purchase agreement, 
LOM, continuing disclosures, and trust indenture.  Mr. Sanford continued, stating that this was a limited 
offering, not a private placement, like past bonds, and recommended approval with the amended dollar 
amount.   
 
A motion was made by Ms. Cepero, seconded by Mr. Lopez and passed unanimously adopting 
Resolution No. 2022-14, as amended. 
 
 3.  Consider Resolution No. 2022-15 – Declaring Special Assessments 
 
Resolution No. 2022-15 was presented, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-15 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE AVENIR 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT DECLARING SPECIAL 
ASSESSMENTS (ASSESSMENT AREA THREE); INDICATING THE 
LOCATION, NATURE AND ESTIMATED COST OF THOSE IMPROVEMENTS 
WHICH COST IS TO BE DEFRAYED IN PART BY THE SPECIAL 
ASSESSMENTS; PROVIDING THE PORTION OF THE ESTIMATED COST OF 
THE IMPROVEMENTS TO BE PARTIALLY DEFRAYED BY THE SPECIAL 
ASSESSMENTS; PROVIDING THE MANNER IN WHICH SUCH SPECIAL 
ASSESSMENTS SHALL BE MADE; PROVIDING WHEN SUCH SPECIAL 
ASSESSMENTS SHALL BE MADE; DESIGNATING LANDS UPON WHICH 
THE SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS SHALL BE LEVIED; PROVIDING FOR AN 
ASSESSMENT PLAT FOR ASSESSMENT AREA THREE; AUTHORIZING 
THE PREPARATION OF A PRELIMINARY ASSESSMENT ROLL; 
PROVIDING FOR A PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER THE ADVISABILITY 
AND PROPRIETY OF SAID ASSESSMENTS AND THE RELATED 
IMPROVEMENTS; PROVIDING FOR NOTICE OF SAID PUBLIC HEARING; 
PROVIDING FOR PUBLICATION OF THIS RESOLUTION. 

It was explained that the resolution allows the District to levy assessments for the AA3 project, and that 
it starts the process for the referenced maximum amount.  It was noted that the acreage should be 
amended to reflect 385.61.   
 
A motion was made by Ms. Cepero, seconded by Mr. Horowitz and passed unanimously adopting 
Resolution No. 2022-15, as amended. 
 
 4.  Consider Resolution No. 2022-16 – Setting a Public Hearing on the Levy of Non-Ad 
Valorem Assessments 
 
Mr. Pawelczyk presented Resolution No. 2022-16, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-16 

Page 4



A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE AVENIR 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT SETTING A PUBLIC HEARING 
TO BE HELD AT 12:30 P.M. ON JANUARY 26, 2023, AT THE OFFICES OF 
SPECIAL DISTRICT SERVICES, INC., 2501A BURNS ROAD, FLORIDA 33410, 
FOR THE PURPOSE OF HEARING PUBLIC COMMENT ON THE LEVY OF 
NON AD VALOREM SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS ON CERTAIN PROPERTY 
(ASSESSMENT AREA THREE) WITHIN THE BOUNDARIES OF THE 
DISTRICT PURSUANT TO CHAPTERS 190, F.S., 170, F.S., AND 197, F.S 

Mr. Pawelczyk explained that this resolution sets the public hearing.  It was noted that the acreage should 
be amended to reflect 385.61.   
 
A motion was made by Ms. Cepero, seconded by Mr. Lopez and passed unanimously adopting 
Resolution No. 2022-16, as amended. 
 
 5.  Consider Ancillary Board Documents 
 
Mr. Pawelczyk presented the ancillary bond documents, noting that they were in substantially final form, and 
will include additional information from the LOM, once the bonds are ready to close.  He explained that the 
Assignment and Acquisition Agreement allows the District to fund items in the engineer report and accept 
construction contracts already in place, as well as allows the District to accept completed items; the Completion 
Agreement requires the developer to complete the projects contemplated in AA3, should there not be enough 
bond proceeds; the Lien of Record sets a lien on AA3 and provides a notice to buyers; the Collateral Assignment 
and Assumption of Development Rights stipulates that the District can take over if the developer does not pay 
assessments; the True-Up Agreement is used in the event that the number of units or land changes; and the 
Declaration of Consent to Jurisdiction is signed by the developer and agrees that the District was established 
correctly.   
 
A motion was made by Ms. Cepero, seconded by Mr. Horowitz and unanimously passed approving the ancillary 
bond documents, in substantially final form.   
 
 6.  Consider Agreement for Underwriter Services (FMS) 
 
A motion was made by Ms. Cepero, seconded by Mr. Horowitz and passed unanimously approving the 
Agreement for Underwriter Services with FMS, as presented. 
 
 7.  Consider Ratification of Agreement for Professional Services Relating to Lift Stations 
#13 & #14 (Caulfield & Wheeler) 
 
Mr. Ballbe presented the agreement with Caulfield & Wheeler, explaining that it was for sketches and 
legals for Lift Stations 13 and 14. 
 
A motion was made by Ms. Cepero, seconded by Mr. Lopez and passed unanimously ratifying the 
agreement for professional services related to Lift Stations #13 and #14, as presented. 
 
 8.  Consider Ratification of Agreement for Professional Services Related to the Avenir Pod 
15 – Lake Interconnect Easements (Caulfield & Wheeler) 
 

Page 5



Mr. Ballbe presented the agreement with Caulfield & Wheeler in the amount of $4,620, explaining that 
it was for work needed to dedicate the easement to the District for lake interconnects.   
 
A motion was made by Ms. Cepero, seconded by Mr. Lopez and passed unanimously ratifying the 
agreement for professional services related to the Avenir Pod 15 – Lake Interconnect Easements, as 
presented. 
 
 9.  Consider License Agreement for Installation of Lake Fountains 
 
Mr. Ballbe and Mr. Pawelczyk presented the license agreement with GL Homes, explaining that GL 
Homes would install fountains and the District would take over ownership and maintenance 
responsibilities at a later date.  This agreement is needed in order to allow the developer to install the 
fountains.   
 
A motion was made by Ms. Cepero, seconded by Mr. Lopez and passed unanimously approving the 
License Agreement for the installation of lake fountains, as presented. 
 
 10.  Consider Ratification of Pod 15 Closing Documents 

• Maintenance Agreement  
• Lake Interconnect Easement  
• Landscape Maintenance Easement Agreement 

 
Mr. Pawelczyk presented the maintenance agreements between the District and Pod 15 HOA, noting that it 
acknowledges that the District has improvements, including landscaping, that the HOA will maintain.  The 
District will maintain the lakes and littorals.  The lake interconnect agreement was prepared by Caulfield & 
Wheeler and has already been delivered. 
 
A motion was made by Ms. Cepero, seconded by Mr. Lopez and unanimously passed  ratifying the agreements, 
as presented.   
 

11.  Consider Resolution No. 2022-17 – Ratifying Land Swap Agreement and Execution 
and Acceptance of Conveyance Documents 

 
Mr. Pawelczyk presented Resolution No. 2022-17, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION NO.  2022-17 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
AVENIR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
RATIFYING THE EXECUTION OF (1) A LAND SWAP 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE DISTRICT AND AVENIR 
DEVELOPMENT, LLC, AND (2) THE MULTIPLE 
CONVEYANCE DOCUMENTS ARISING OUT OF THE LAND 
SWAP AGREEMENT BY VIRGINIA CEPERO, AS CHAIR OF 
THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS; ACCEPTING THE SPECIAL 
WARRANTY DEED AND OTHER CONVEYANCE 
DOCUMENTS PREPARED AND EXECUTED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH THE LAND SWAP AGREEMENT; AND 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

Page 6



Mr. Pawelczyk explained that the Board authorized the land swap at a previous meeting, and that the 
District received more land than it gave away.  He noted that this resolution was for the record to show 
approval of the swap.   
 
A motion was made by Ms. Cepero, seconded by Mr. Lopez and passed unanimously adopting 
Resolution No. 2022-17, as presented. 
 
 12.  Consider Spine Road Phase 4 – FPL Backbone Contract (SPF) 
 
Mr. Ballbe presented Spine Road Phase 4 - FPL Backbone Contract with SPF, explaining that SPF would 
install the underground utilities.  Mr. Pierman noted that an updated version of agreement, inclusive of 
Mr. Pawelczyk’s comments, was printed and signature.   
 
A motion was made by Ms. Cepero, seconded by Mr. Lopez and passed unanimously approving the 
Spine Road Phase 4 FPL Backbone Contract, as presented. 
 
 13.  Consider Ratification of Agreement for Professional Services Related to the Avenir Pod 
15 – CDD Maintenance Easements (Caulfield & Wheeler) 
 
Mr. Ballbe presented the agreement, noting that the total cost was $2,620. 
 
A motion was made by Ms. Cepero, seconded by Mr. Lopes and passed unanimously ratifying the 
agreement for professional services related to the Avenir Pod 15 – CDD maintenance easements, as 
presented. 
 
 14.  Consider Ratification of FPL LED Agreement – Spine Road 4 
 
Mr. Ballbe presented the agreement with FPL for lighting installation along Spine Road 4. 
 
A motion was made by Ms. Cepero, seconded by Mr. Lopez and passed unanimously ratifying the FPL 
LED Agreement, Spine Road 4, as presented. 
 
I. CLUBHOUSE 
 1.  Clubhouse Management Update 
 
Mr. Salvatore presented the clubhouse management update, noting that holiday lighting was up and 
working, fitness classes were about to begin, palm trees would be trimmed in January, and the pump at 
the front entrance had been replaced due to a power surge.  He also noted the need for an emergency call 
box for after-hours gym access, as well as upgraded pool deck gates for exits.   
 
Discussion ensued regarding the need to add event rental fees for outside areas, as well as a fee for added 
hours.  Mr. Pierman noted that staff would advertise a public hearing for either January or February to 
amend the fee structure.   
 
Mr. Salvatore asked the Board their preference regarding pool hours, with the Board agreeing that access 
should be granted until 10:00 p.m.   
 

Page 7



Mr. Pierman noted that Mr. Salvatore had suggested adding dog waste stations along Avenir Drive to 
help alleviate the amount of dog waste that was being discarded in trash bins.  The cost is $500 each, 
and Mr. Salvatore recommended adding four stations. 
 
A motion was made by Ms. Cepero, seconded by Mr. Lopez and unanimously passed approving the 
installation of four dog waste stations.   
 
J. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
 
There were no Administrative Matters to come before the Board. 
  
K. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
There were no further Board Member comments. 
 
L. ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to come before the Board, a motion was made by Ms. Cepero, seconded 
by Mr. Lopez and passed unanimously adjourning the Regular Board Meeting at 1:20 p.m.   
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
________________________________  _________________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary    Chairperson/Vice-Chair 

Page 8



 
AVENIR 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT 

 
 

 

Prepared for:
Board of Supervisors

AVENIR Community Development District

Prepared by:

BALLBÉ & ASSOCIATES, INC.
2737 N.E. 30th Place

Fort Lauderdale, FL 33306
(954) 491-7811

Project Number:
201622

October 17, 2022 (Revised January 11, 2023)

Page 9



ballbé & associates, inc.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PART I INTRODUCTION ……………………..………..……………….…..…………… 1

PART II GENERAL INFORMATION …………….….….……….……………………….. 2

PART III PLANNED IMPROVEMENTS ……………………..…………..…..………..….. 6

PART IV PERMITTING, OWNERSHIP AND MAINTENANCE …...……………..…..….. 11

PART V COST SUMMARY …………………………..…………………………………… 13

PART VI CONCLUSION …………………………………….…………..………………… 15

Page 10



ballbé & associates, inc.

LIST OF EXHIBITS

Exhibit 1 Avenir C.D.D. Location Map
Exhibit 2 Site Map
Exhibit 3 Assessment Area Three – Survey and Legal Description
Exhibit 4 Assessment Area Three – 2023 Project Area Plan
Exhibit 5 Conceptual Mitigation Plan (“CMP”)

Page 11



ballbé & associates, inc.

PART I: INTRODUCTION

This Fourth Amendment to the Fifth Supplemental Engineer’s Report (the “Report”) 
was prepared by Ballbé & Associates, Inc. (the “District Engineer”) on behalf of 
the Avenir Community Development District Board of Supervisors (the “Board”), 
the governing body of the Avenir Community Development District (the “District”) 
for the purposes of describing the proposed infrastructure improvements with their
corresponding estimating construction costs relating to the defined Assessment 
Area within the District as follows:

Additional funding for infrastructure expenditures within Assessment Area 
Three (the “Assessment Area Three – 2023 Project”).

The District is located in the City of Palm Beach Gardens (the “City”) in Palm 
Beach County, Florida (the “County”) and was established pursuant to Chapter 
190, Florida Statutes, for the development of public infrastructure improvements
required to service a mixed-use planned community development (the 
“Development”) and to provide for the acquisition and/or construction,
financing, long term administration and management of such public 
infrastructure improvements.

This Report summarizes the extent, nature, and costs of the proposed 
infrastructure improvements for the Assessment Area Three – 2023 Project.

Information provided in this Report was obtained by the District Engineer who has 
considered and in certain instances relied upon opinions, information and 
documentation prepared or supplied by others, which include public officials, 
public entities, representatives of Avenir Development, LLC and related entities 
(collectively the “Developer”), Special District Services, Inc. (the “District 
Manager”) and other professionals and contractors.

Page 12



ballbé & associates, inc.

PART II: GENERAL INFORMATION

A. Creation and Location

Pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, the City approved the petition to 
establish the District on January 5, 2017 by Ordinance No. 17, 2016 (the 
“Ordinance”).  According to the Ordinance, “The creation of the District is 
the best alternative available for delivering the community development 
services and facilities… to the area that will be served by the District.”  

The District is located in the City, more particularly described as being 
situated north of Northlake Boulevard, south of Beeline Highway, east of 
Grapeview Boulevard and west of Stonewall Drive.  The land lies the 
following sections:

Township, Range Section Number
Township 42 South
Range 41 East 4,8,9,10,14,15,16,17

Township 41 South
Range 41 East 28,23

Total District Area = 2,427.50 Acres

B. General Information

The Development consists of approximately 2,427.50 acres.  The City 
approved the change in land use and zoning designation for the 
Development on May 5, 2016 as follows:

Ordinance
Number Description

Ordinance 3-16 Change Land Use Designation to Mixed 
Use Development (MXD)

Ordinance 4-16 Change Zoning to Planned Community 
Development (PCD)

Ordinance 4-16 Avenir Development Standards

Page 13



ballbé & associates, inc.

C. Assessment Area Three - General Information

A portion of the public improvements, community facilities and basic 
infrastructure needed to serve the portion of the Development located 
within Assessment Area Three will be funded and either acquired from the 
Developer or constructed by the District in accordance with the estimated 
construction cost provided herein.  Improvements include but are not 
limited to following basic categories:

Improvement Description
Surface water management and drainage system, 
including related land acquisition
Master drainage system

Wastewater collection/transmission system

Water distribution system

Roadways including related land acquisition
Open space and recreation areas, including land 
acquisition
Landscaping, irrigation, entrance features, 
hardscapes
Conservation area mitigation

Below please find the parcels within the Assessment Area Three and the planned 
uses that will benefit from the Assessment Area Three – 2023 Project:

Parcel I.D. Product/Use No. of Units

A-16
50’ wide residential 283

60’ wide residential 208

A-17 65’ wide residential 125

A-19 65’ wide residential 135

Parcel “D” Professional 
Office/Medical 97.44 acres

Page 14



ballbé & associates, inc.

Parcel “H” Agriculture 11.43 acres

Parcel “J-East” Professional Office 7.52 acres

Parcel “J-West” Professional Office 14.23 acres

TOTALS = 751 units
130.62 acres

1. 2023 Special Assessment Bonds (Assessment Area Three – 2023 Project)

The District will be issuing Special Assessment Bonds for the Assessment Area
Three – 2023 Project in one or more series (herein, the “2023 Bonds”) to 
finance a portion of the following public improvements:

Master surface water management system
Spine road infrastructure consisting of but not limited to the following 
improvements:

o Earthwork operations
o Water distribution system
o Sewage collection/transmission system
o Sewage lift stations
o Drainage system and lake interconnects
o Road improvements
o Pavement markings and signage
o Differential cost of undergrounding electric utilities
o Paths and sidewalks
o Landscape and irrigation in public rights of way

Entry features and hardscape
Conservation area mitigation
Other public infrastructure related items
Land Acquisition

The above referenced 2023 Bonds of each series will be secured by all
of the assemble lands within the enumerated parcels set forth below 
which are located within Assessment Area Three (herein referred to as 
the Assessment Area Three – 2023 Project Area or just “Assessment Area 
Three”) until the land is platted.  The following parcels will be assessed 
to secure the Series 2023 Bond:

Page 15



ballbé & associates, inc.

Parcel I.D. Product/Use No. of Units

A-16
50’ wide residential 283

60’ wide residential 208

A-17 65’ wide residential 125

A-19 65’ wide residential 135

Parcel “D” Professional 
Office/Medical 97.44 acres

Parcel “H” Agriculture 11.43 acres

Parcel “J-East” Professional Office 7.52 acres

Parcel “J-West” Professional Office 14.23 acres

TOTALS = 751 units
130.62 acres

Please find attached for your reference the following exhibit:

Exhibit 1 Avenir C.D.D. Location Map
Exhibit 2 Site Map
Exhibit 3 Assessment Area Three – Survey and Legal Description
Exhibit 4 Assessment Area Three – 2023 Project Area Plan

Page 16



ballbé & associates, inc.

PART III: PLANNED IMPROVEMENTS

Following is a brief summary of the anticipated public infrastructure improvements 
to be constructed within Assessment Area Three:

A. Surface Water Management and Drainage System

The proposed stormwater management system for the Avenir Community 
Development District consists of three drainage basins (S-1, S-2, & S-3), and three 
natural basins.  For each of the development basins, the stormwater 
management system consists of lakes which provide water quality treatment prior 
to discharge to the preserve basins through both pump and gravity structures. 
Ultimate discharge is from the basins to the C-18 West canal and to the CBP-12 
canal through control structures.

The developed area’s stormwater management system will also provide for 
attenuation of runoff from storm events including protection of interior roadways, 
buildings, and the adjacent areas in accordance with the current conceptual 
Environmental Resources Permit issued by South Florida Water Management 
District.  The District will purchase all or a portion of the lake tracts within the 
Assessment Area Three parcels. The acquisition price shall be based on the lower 
of fair market value or the cost basis of the Developer for the lands being 
purchased.  Fair market value will be determined by an independent appraisal 
commissioned by the District.

The proposed surface water management system for Assessment Area Three
consist of the construction of a series of lakes interconnected with pipes and a 
pump station that will discharge the generated runoff from such areas to the 
preservation areas.

Water quantity storage will be provided for the following design rainfall events:

5-year 1-day (parking areas)
10-year 1-day (roads)
25-year 3-day (minimum perimeter elevation)
100-year 3-day (minimum finish floor elevation)

Roadway Stormwater Facilities
The roadways will be constructed with a series of catch basins, culverts and 
outfalls which will convey the surface water runoff collected within the road right-
of-way and adjacent buffers to the master lake system.

Regulation Compliance

Page 17



ballbé & associates, inc.

The proposed surface water management system will be designed to meet the 
stormwater management requirements of the South Florida Water Management 
District Basis of Review, the City of Palm Beach Gardens, the Army Corps of 
Engineers the Florida Department of Environmental Protection and any other 
applicable permitting agency with jurisdiction over the proposed work.  

B. Wastewater Collection/Transmission System

The property is located within the Seacoast Utility Authority (“SUA”) sewer service 
area.  Subject to prevailing fees, charges, policies and practices, Seacoast will 
provide sanitary sewer service collection and distribution.  SUA will be providing 
service thru the existing Interlocal Agreement Between Palm Beach County and 
Seacoast Utility Authority for the Purchase and Sale of Bulk Potable Water and 
Wastewater Service.   

Existing and Proposed Sewage Collection/Transmission Improvements
The County currently owns and operates a 24” force main located at the Mecca 
Repump Station located adjacent to the District’s west property line.  The 
proposed improvements for the sewage collection/transmission system consists of 
a network of gravity mains within the spine roads which will collect and transmit 
the sewage flow from the properties within Assessment Area Three and the and 
will discharge to sewage lift stations which will ultimately pump the generated 
sewage load to the County’s existing force main. 

Existing Sewage Treatment Facilities
Sewage treatment will be provided by the East Central Regional Wastewater 
Treatment Facilities Operation Board (“ECR”) which is funded and governed by a 
board comprised of the representatives of the entities served by that facility, 
namely: the City of West Palm Beach, the City of Lake Worth, the City of Riviera 
Beach, the Town of Palm Beach, and the County. The ECR is licensed to function 
under specific guidelines by the State of Florida and the U.S. Environmental 
Protection Agency. The plant is operated by Florida licensed Wastewater Plant 
Operators and it is currently permitted to process 64 million gallons of wastewater 
per day (MGD).  

Currently, the plant is treating approximately 45 million gallons per day and 
therefore, the plant has adequate capacity to treat the anticipated flow for the 
Assessment Area Three Project.

Regulation Compliance
The proposed sewage collection/transmission system will be designed to meet 
the requirements of the following permitting agencies:

Page 18



ballbé & associates, inc.

Seacoast Utility Authority
Palm Beach County Water Utilities Department
City of West Palm Beach
Palm Beach County Health Department 
Florida Department of Environmental Protection 
City of Palm Beach Gardens

C. Water Distribution System

The property is located within the Seacoast Utility Authority (“SUA”) water service 
area.  Subject to prevailing fees, charges, policies and practices, Seacoast will 
provide domestic water service and distribution. SUA will be providing service 
thru the existing Interlocal Agreement Between Palm Beach County and 
Seacoast Utility Authority for the Purchase and Sale of Bulk Potable Water and 
Wastewater Service.   

Existing and Proposed Water Distribution System Improvements
The County currently owns and operates a 30” water main located along the west 
bank of the SFWMD C-18 Canal at the Mecca Pump Station.  The District will be 
constructing a series of water mains to provide the required water distribution 
system network and to provide water service to the the developable parcels.

Regulation Compliance
The proposed water distribution system will be designed to meet the requirements 
of the following permitting agencies:

Seacoast Utility Authority
Palm Beach County Water Utilities Department
City of West Palm Beach
Palm Beach County Health Department 
Florida Department of Environmental Protection
City of Palm Beach Gardens

D. Roadway Improvements

The District will be constructing certain roadway improvements as required by the 
local authorities within publicly dedicated lands or easements, consisting but not 
limited to the extension of Panther National Boulevard (f.k.a. 140th Avenue North 
Boulevard) from Avenir Drive to Northlake Boulevard and the extension of Avenir 
Drive from Panther National Boulevard to the west property line of the District.
The roadway components include but are not limited to the road subgrade, rock 
base, asphalt, curbing and sidewalks, asphalt paths, streetlights owned by the 

Page 19



ballbé & associates, inc.

District, turn lanes, pavement markings and traffic control devices.  The District 
will only finance roadways that are open and available for public use.

E. Open Space and Recreation

As approved by the City Development Order, the District will construct certain 
common area trails, pathways, lake parks and other open space amenities as it 
may be required by the City.  The District will purchase all or a portion of the 
landscape buffers, open space buffers and public recreation tracts. These areas 
will be available for the use by the general public.

F. Landscaping, Irrigation, Entrance Features, Hardscapes

Landscape buffers will be constructed which will require earthwork operations to 
construct berms, the installation of landscape material and irrigation, and the 
differential cost of undergrounding of electric utilities, as required by the City.  A
main entry feature will be constructed at the intersection of Northlake Boulevard
and Panther National Boulevard and a sign will be constructed on Northlake 
Boulevard at the west end of the project. The entry feature will include signs, 
berms, landscaping, irrigation and fountains.

G. Conservation Area Mitigation

Wetlands within Assessment Area Three consist of wet pastures, marshes, wet 
prairies, and hydric pine flatwoods.  The Conceptual Mitigation Plan (“CMP”) for 
the Avenir development preserves, enhances and restores 2,426 acres adjacent 
to Palm Beach County natural areas and South Florida Water Management 
District-owned lands. The conservation areas for the District to fund consists of 
2,027 acres encompassing Basins N-1 and N-2.  These acres include existing 
wetlands and pine flatwoods in good condition, as well as improved and 
unimproved pastures with poor quality wetlands. The mitigation areas are 
located adjacent to the District’s boundary and are currently owned by the 
Developer.  The mitigation area is encumbered by a conservation easement 
dedicated to the South Florida Water Management District (the “SFWMD”) and 
the Environmental Resource Management Permit issued by SFWMD for the 
Development requires the mitigation of certain conservation areas. 

The conservation area and mitigation plan include increasing the control 
elevation, filling ditches, scraping down higher elevation pastures, and 
management of vegetation through various methods to promote re-growth of 
native plant communities and elimination of exotic, nuisance and inappropriate 
species. In addition, a conveyance swale along the west side of the North- South

Page 20



ballbé & associates, inc.

Road will be planted as a buffer. Additional ditches will also be filled as part of 
the restoration plan. 

The CMP includes a conceptual long-term management plan to maintain the 
mitigation areas, including fire management (please refer to Exhibit 5).

Page 21



ballbé & associates, inc.

PART IV: PERMITTING, OWNERSHIP AND MAINTENANCE

The design and permitting of the infrastructure items described above is currently 
in progress.  Following is a list of the permits that will be required for the installation 
of the improvements relating to Assessment Area Three – 2023 Project:

Agency Jurisdiction

South Florida Water Management 
District

Surface water management 
system and lake excavation, 
paving and drainage system 
and wetland mitigation, water 
use and dewatering

Palm Beach County Land 
Development

Northlake Boulevard 
Intersection and driveway 
connections

South Florida Water Management 
District Wetland mitigation

Seacoast Utility Authority Water
Palm Beach County Water Utilities 
Department Water

Palm Beach County Health 
Department Water and Sewer

Florida Department of 
Environmental Protection Water and Sewer

City of Palm Beach Gardens Fire-
Rescue Water

City of Palm Beach Gardens

Water, sewer, drainage, 
paving and related work, 
landscape, irrigation, 
recreation amenities, buildings 
and walls, plats

Permits for the construction of the improvements will be available upon applicant 
submitting the necessary plans, specifications, applications and fees as required 
by the permitting agencies and meeting the design criteria of the agencies 
having jurisdiction over the permitted improvements.  

Applicant has obtained the following permits:

South Florida Water Management Environmental Resources Permit for the 
master surface water management system.

Page 22



ballbé & associates, inc.

Permits are expected to be obtained in the ordinary course.

The District will finance the construction and/or acquisition of the proposed 
improvements within Assessment Area Three, will convey certain improvements to 
public agencies and will operate and maintain certain other improvements not 
so conveyed to other public agencies.  Following please find a list of the 
anticipated improvements that will be initially finance by the District along with 
the ultimate ownership entity information and the maintenance responsibility 
information: 

Required Improvement Ownership Maintenance
Wastewater 
Collection/transmission System

Seacoast Utility 
Authority Seacoast Utility Authority

Water Distribution System Seacoast Utility 
Authority Seacoast Utility Authority

Surface Water Management 
and Drainage System Avenir CDD Avenir CDD

Wetlands Mitigation and 
Conservation Avenir CDD Avenir CDD

Roadway Improvements Avenir CDD Avenir CDD

Open Space and Recreation Avenir CDD Avenir CDD

Landscaping, Irrigation, 
Entrance Features, Hardscapes Avenir CDD Avenir CDD

Page 23



ballbé & associates, inc.

PART V: COST SUMMARY

The construction cost estimates to be financed by the District for planned 
improvements representing the Assessment Area Three – 2023 Project are as 
follows:

1. 2023 Bonds (Assessment Area Three – 2023 Project)

The estimated costs for the phases of the public infrastructure to be 
constructed within Assessment Area Three being funded in whole or in part by 
the District by the issuance of one or more series of its 2023 Bonds (Assessment 
Area Three – 2023 Project) are as follows:

Items Description Total Estimated
Cost

1 Surface water management and 
drainage system

$10,000,000

2 Master drainage system and drainage 
pump station

$8,500,000

3 Wastewater collection/transmission 
system

$4,500,000

4 Water distribution system $4,500,000

5 Roadways $16,500,000

6 Open space and recreation areas $6,500,000

7 Landscaping, irrigation, entrance 
features, hardscapes

$10,000,000

8 Conservation area mitigation $3,594,000

9

Surface water management, road 
rights-of-way, buffers, recreation tracts 
and open space related land 
acquisition (Approximately 70 acres of 
land to be purchase)

$10,906,000

TOTAL = $75,000,000

Page 24



ballbé & associates, inc.

Soft Cost, Permit Fees, General Conditions:

The items listed above include financing costs, consulting fees and soft 
costs fees for planning, design, engineering, and surveying, permitting fees, 
appraisals, legal and administrative fees, water and sewer impact fees, City 
and County impact fees pertaining the site infrastructure and project 
management related to the District’s public infrastructure program.  The 
City, County and State impose permit fees for the construction of the 
proposed infrastructure improvements.  These fees vary depending on the
type of work involved and are usually based on a percentage of the total 
cost of the work.  Any fees related to the proposed public improvements 
by the Developer will be paid on behalf of the District. 

Land Acquisition:
The cost estimates for any acquisition of lands by the District set forth in this 
Report was based on information provided by the Developer.  It is 
understood that the actual price paid by the District will be determined by 
the lower of the cost basis to the Developer or the appraised value 
determined by an independent appraisal commissioned by the District. 

There are approximately 70.00 acres of land to be acquired by the District 
at a cost of approximately $155,800.00 per acre based on previous 
appraisals obtained by the District, subject to adjustments for current land 
prices.  The cost of the land purchase is approximately $10,906,000.00.

Page 25



ballbé & associates, inc.

PART VI: CONCLUSION

A. Benefits and Costs:

The planned improvements described above will provide a direct and
special benefit to the properties and residential parcels within Assessment 
Area Three.

B. Recommendations:

The District will need to obtain revenues for the purpose of funding the 
construction of the required public improvements listed in this Report.  In 
order to generate this revenue, the District will rely on non-ad valorem 
revenues levied against the assessable lands within Assessment Area Three 
and issue its 2023 Bonds, the debt service for which will be paid from such 
annual non-ad valorem assessments levied on lands within the benefitted 
areas within Assessment Area Three within the District and collected by the 
District.  Also, the District will collect an annual “operation and 
maintenance Assessment” to be determined, assessed and levied by the 
Board upon all of the assessable lands within the benefitted areas within 
Assessment Area Three for the purpose of defraying the cost and expenses 
of operating and maintaining District owned improvements.

C. Modifications to the Report:

It may be necessary to make changes and modification to the planned 
improvements during the planning, permitting and construction stages of 
the public infrastructure.  It is not expected that the changes and 
modifications will significantly impact the information and conclusions 
contained in this report.

Based on the information obtained to date and the recommendations listed in 
the reports prepared by various consultants associated with the Assessment Area 
Three – 2023 Project, it is our opinion that as set forth in the approval requirements 
from the applicable governmental entities, the lands in the District can be 
developed for its intended use.  

The estimated cost associated with the planned improvements is only an estimate
and not a guaranteed maximum price. The estimated cost is based on unit prices 
currently being experienced for on-going and similar items of work in the area. 
The labor market, future costs of equipment and material, and the actual 
construction process are all beyond our control. Due to this inherent opportunity 
for fluctuation in cost, the total final cost may be more or less than the estimated 
value. The professional services for establishing the opinion of estimated 

Page 26



ballbé & associates, inc.

construction cost are consistent with the degree of care and skill exercised by 
members of the same profession under similar circumstances. 

It is our opinion that the special benefits to be received by the landowners and 
residents within Assessment Area Three within the District as a result of the 
construction of the public infrastructure constituting the Assessment Area Three –
2023 Project is at least equal to the cost thereof.

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of the Engineer’s 
Report for the Avenir Community Development District.

Sincerely,

BALLBÉ & ASSOCIATES, INC.

    Date:  1/11/2023
Carlos J. Ballbé
For the Firm
Registered Engineer No. 41811
State of Florida

Page 27



ballbé & associates, inc.

PART II - GENERAL INFORMATION
Exhibit 1 Avenir C.D.D. Location Map

Page 28



Page 29



ballbé & associates, inc.

PART II - GENERAL INFORMATION
Exhibit 2 Site Map

Page 30



Page 31



ballbé & associates, inc.

PART II - GENERAL INFORMATION
Exhibit 3 Assessment Area Three – Survey and Legal Description

Page 32











Page 33











Page 34











Page 35











Page 36











Page 37











Page 38











Page 39











Page 40











Page 41











Page 42



ASSESSMENT AREA THREE LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

 

POD D DESCRIPTION:  

A PORTION OF PARCEL "A-1", AVENIR, AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 127, PAGES 85 THROUGH 109 OF THE 
PUBLIC RECORDS OF PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA. BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS 
FOLLOWS: 

COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF PARCEL A-1, AVENIR, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF, 
AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 127, PAGES 85 THROUGH 109, PUBLIC RECORDS OF PALM BEACH COUNTY, 
FLORIDA, ; THENCE, NORTH 23° 34' 16" WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 106.74 FEET TO THE POINT OF 
BEGINNING; THENCE, NORTH 01° 33' 47" WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 657.27 FEET TO THE BEGINNING OF 
A CURVE  TO THE LEFT THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 04° 44' 53", HAVING A RADIUS OF 1280.00 FEET, 
HAVING AN ARC DISTANCE OF 106.07 FEET, AND WHOSE LONG CHORD BEARS NORTH 03° 56' 13" WEST 
FOR A DISTANCE OF 106.04 FEET; THENCE, NORTH 32° 01' 18" WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 96.55 FEET; 
THENCE, NORTH 89° 59' 58" WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 27.91 FEET; THENCE, NORTH 00° 00' 00" EAST FOR 
A DISTANCE OF 71.00 FEET; THENCE, SOUTH 89° 59' 58" EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 17.34 FEET; THENCE, 
NORTH 36° 12' 44" EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 44.63 FEET TO THE BEGINNING OF A NON-TANGENT CURVE  
TO THE LEFT THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 05° 36' 02", HAVING A RADIUS OF 1280.00 FEET, HAVING 
AN ARC DISTANCE OF 125.12 FEET, AND WHOSE LONG CHORD BEARS NORTH 17° 43' 15" WEST FOR A 
DISTANCE OF 125.07 FEET; THENCE, N20° 31' 16" W FOR A DISTANCE OF 1026.66 FEET; THENCE, S24° 28' 
43" W FOR A DISTANCE OF 56.57 FEET; THENCE, S69° 28' 44" W FOR A DISTANCE OF 58.90 FEET TO THE 
BEGINNING OF A CURVE  TO THE RIGHT THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 21° 37' 59", HAVING A RADIUS 
OF 100.00 FEET, HAVING AN ARC DISTANCE OF 37.76 FEET, AND WHOSE LONG CHORD BEARS SOUTH 80° 
17' 43" WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 37.53 FEET; THENCE, NORTH 88° 53' 17" WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 
1130.47 FEET; THENCE, NORTH 01° 06' 43" EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 446.35 FEET TO THE BEGINNING OF 
A NON-TANGENT CURVE  TO THE RIGHT THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 16° 29' 43", HAVING A RADIUS 
OF 1130.00 FEET, HAVING AN ARC DISTANCE OF 325.32 FEET, AND WHOSE LONG CHORD BEARS SOUTH 
66° 12' 37" WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 324.20 FEET; THENCE, S01° 06' 43" W FOR A DISTANCE OF 556.49 
FEET; THENCE, N88° 34' 05" W FOR A DISTANCE OF 174.00 FEET; THENCE, S01° 06' 43" W FOR A DISTANCE 
OF 1859.46 FEET; THENCE, N86° 54' 02" E FOR A DISTANCE OF 2216.49 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

CONTAINING 97.442 ACRES MORE OR LESS. 

SUBJECT TO EASEMENTS, RESERVATIONS, AND/OR RIGHTS-OF-WAY OF RECORD. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 43



TOGETHER WITH: 

PARCEL J WEST:  

A PORTION OF PARCEL "A-1", AVENIR, AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 127, PAGES 85 THROUGH 109 OF THE 
PUBLIC RECORDS OF PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA. BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS 
FOLLOWS: 

BEGINNING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF CONSERVATION AREA TRACT C-2, AVENIR, ACCORDING TO 
THE PLAT THEREOF, AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 127, PAGES 85 THROUGH 109, PUBLIC RECORDS OF 
PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA, THENCE S88°54'50"E, A DISTANCE OF 1319.43 FEET; THENCE 
N01°05'27"E, A DISTANCE OF 243.43 FEET; THENCE N49°46'38"E, A DISTANCE OF 18.91 FEET; THENCE 
N41°34'11"E, A DISTANCE OF 41.36 FEET; THENCE N46°47'03"E, A DISTANCE OF 38.64 FEET; THENCE 
S86°47'34"E, A DISTANCE OF 53.17 FEET; THENCE S74°45'48"E, A DISTANCE OF 66.39 FEET; THENCE 
S81°17'03"E, A DISTANCE OF 40.54 FEET; THENCE S83°58'24"E, A DISTANCE OF 62.83 FEET; THENCE 
N62°26'52"E, A DISTANCE OF 87.02 FEET; THENCE N60°22'01"E, A DISTANCE OF 47.81 FEET; THENCE 
N66°59'09"E, A DISTANCE OF 60.06 FEET; THENCE N12°18'44"E, A DISTANCE OF 23.25 FEET; THENCE 
N57°54'21"E, A DISTANCE OF 101.81 FEET; THENCE S82°24'02"E, A DISTANCE OF 25.28 FEET; THENCE 
N59°36'08"E, A DISTANCE OF 152.81 FEET; THENCE N49°59'25"E, A DISTANCE OF 224.50 FEET; THENCE 
S54°56'07"E, A DISTANCE OF 159.34 FEET; THENCE S88°54'50"E, A DISTANCE OF 284.53 FEET; THENCE 
S09°10'55"W, A DISTANCE OF 167.31 FEET; THENCE S00°39'05"W, A DISTANCE OF 333.61 FEET; THENCE 
S45°52'07"W, A DISTANCE OF 141.96 FEET; THENCE N88°54'50"W, A DISTANCE OF 2490.39 FEET; THENCE 
N00°53'56"W, A DISTANCE OF 10.01 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

CONTAINING 14.227 ACRES, MORE OR LESS. 

SUBJECT TO EASEMENTS, RESERVATIONS, AND/OR RIGHTS-OF-WAY OF RECORD. 

 

TOGETHER WITH: 

 

PARCEL J EAST:  

A PORTION OF PARCEL "A-1", AVENIR, AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 127, PAGES 85 THROUGH 109 OF THE 
PUBLIC RECORDS OF PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA. BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS 
FOLLOWS: 

BEGINNING AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF CONSERVATION AREA TRACT C-4, AVENIR, ACCORDING TO 
THE PLAT THEREOF, AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 127, PAGES 85 THROUGH 109, PUBLIC RECORDS OF 
PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA, THENCE S00°26'57"W, A DISTANCE OF 10.00 FEET; THENCE 
N89°20'55"W, A DISTANCE OF 2443.15 FEET; THENCE N44°20'55"W, A DISTANCE OF 141.42 FEET; THENCE 
N00°39'05"E, A DISTANCE OF 335.17 FEET; THENCE N07°52'46"W, A DISTANCE OF 184.03 FEET; THENCE 
S89°20'55"E, A DISTANCE OF 586.57 FEET; THENCE S45°23'10"W, A DISTANCE OF 70.95 FEET; THENCE 
S60°32'09"W, A DISTANCE OF 29.92 FEET; THENCE S79°08'41"W, A DISTANCE OF 45.04 FEET; THENCE 
S14°02'40"W, A DISTANCE OF 68.48 FEET; THENCE S24°29'51"E, A DISTANCE OF 30.66 FEET; THENCE 
S46°46'56"W, A DISTANCE OF 41.78 FEET; THENCE S15°59'51"E, A DISTANCE OF 221.31 FEET; THENCE 

Page 44



S37°53'53"E, A DISTANCE OF 60.92 FEET; THENCE S42°20'26"E, A DISTANCE OF 67.24 FEET; THENCE 
S54°59'22"E, A DISTANCE OF 18.76 FEET; THENCE S89°20'55"E, A DISTANCE OF 44.04 FEET; THENCE 
S54°59'22"E, A DISTANCE OF 21.09 FEET; THENCE S72°40'19"E, A DISTANCE OF 79.87 FEET; THENCE 
S69°57'18"E, A DISTANCE OF 69.70 FEET; THENCE S23°18'46"E, A DISTANCE OF 35.06 FEET; THENCE 
S89°20'55"E, A DISTANCE OF 1756.11 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

CONTAINING 7.515 ACRES, MORE OR LESS. 

SUBJECT TO EASEMENTS, RESERVATIONS, AND/OR RIGHTS-OF-WAY OF RECORD. 

 

 

TOGETHER WITH: 

 

PARCEL H:  

A PORTION OF PARCEL "A-1", AVENIR, AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 127, PAGES 85 THROUGH 109 OF THE 
PUBLIC RECORDS OF PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA. BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS 
FOLLOWS: 

COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF CONSERVATION AREA TRACT C-2, AVENIR, ACCORDING 
TO THE PLAT THEREOF, AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 127, PAGES 85 THROUGH 109, PUBLIC RECORDS OF 
PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA, THENCE S88°54'50"E, A DISTANCE OF 1319.43 FEET; THENCE 
N01°05'27"E, A DISTANCE OF 243.43 FEET; THENCE N49°46'38"E, A DISTANCE OF 18.91 FEET; THENCE 
N41°34'11"E, A DISTANCE OF 41.36 FEET; THENCE N46°47'03"E, A DISTANCE OF 38.64 FEET; THENCE 
S86°47'34"E, A DISTANCE OF 53.17 FEET; THENCE S74°45'48"E, A DISTANCE OF 66.39 FEET; THENCE 
S81°17'03"E, A DISTANCE OF 40.54 FEET; THENCE S83°58'24"E, A DISTANCE OF 62.83 FEET; THENCE 
N62°26'52"E, A DISTANCE OF 87.02 FEET; THENCE N60°22'01"E, A DISTANCE OF 47.81 FEET; THENCE 
N66°59'09"E, A DISTANCE OF 60.06 FEET; THENCE N12°18'44"E, A DISTANCE OF 23.25 FEET; THENCE 
N57°54'21"E, A DISTANCE OF 101.81 FEET; THENCE S82°24'02"E, A DISTANCE OF 25.28 FEET; THENCE 
N59°36'08"E, A DISTANCE OF 152.81 FEET; THENCE N49°59'25"E, A DISTANCE OF 224.50 FEET TO THE 
POINT OF BEGINNING AND A POINT OF CURVATURE OF A CURVE CONCAVE TO THE WEST, HAVING A 
RADIUS OF 170.00 FEET; THENCE NORTHERLY, ALONG SAID CURVE TO THE LEFT, THROUGH A CENTRAL 
ANGLE OF 84°22'14", A DISTANCE OF 250.33 FEET TO A POINT OF TANGENCY; THENCE N34°22'49"W, A 
DISTANCE OF 142.93 FEET; THENCE N83°58'24"W, A DISTANCE OF 48.99 FEET; THENCE N76°25'20"W, A 
DISTANCE OF 51.80 FEET; THENCE S89°40'05"W, A DISTANCE OF 64.40 FEET; THENCE N72°40'11"W, A 
DISTANCE OF 28.04 FEET; THENCE N37°07'08"W, A DISTANCE OF 29.06 FEET; THENCE N00°19'55"W, A 
DISTANCE OF 56.92 FEET; THENCE N21°22'01"W, A DISTANCE OF 54.68 FEET; THENCE N36°44'06"W, A 
DISTANCE OF 117.60 FEET; THENCE N21°21'55"W, A DISTANCE OF 35.72 FEET; THENCE N12°18'38"E, A 
DISTANCE OF 75.75 FEET; THENCE N86°55'35"E, A DISTANCE OF 253.68 FEET TO THE BEGINNING OF A 
NON-TANGENT CURVE  TO THE RIGHT THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 93° 13' 24", HAVING A RADIUS OF 
200.00 FEET, HAVING AN ARC DISTANCE OF 325.41 FEET, AND WHOSE LONG CHORD BEARS NORTH 63° 
36' 00" EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 290.69 FEET; THENCE S69°47'18"E, A DISTANCE OF 221.55 FEET; THENCE 
N89°56'00"E, A DISTANCE OF 131.80 FEET TO THE BEGINNING OF A NON-TANGENT CURVE TO THE LEFT 

Page 45



THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 21° 59' 04", HAVING A RADIUS OF 1080.00 FEET, HAVING AN ARC 
DISTANCE OF 414.40 FEET, AND WHOSE LONG CHORD BEARS SOUTH 11° 38' 37" WEST FOR A DISTANCE 
OF 411.86 FEET; THENCE S00°39'05"W, A DISTANCE OF 427.54 FEET; THENCE S09°10'55"W, A DISTANCE 
OF 34.92 FEET; THENCE N88°54'50"W, A DISTANCE OF 284.53 FEET; THENCE N54°56'07"W, A DISTANCE 
OF 159.34 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

CONTAINING 11.430 ACRES, MORE OR LESS. 

SUBJECT TO EASEMENTS, RESERVATIONS, AND/OR RIGHTS-OF-WAY OF RECORD. 

 

TOGETHER WITH: 

 

PARCEL A-19:  

A PORTION OF PARCEL "A-1", AVENIR, AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 127, PAGES 85 THROUGH 109 OF THE 
PUBLIC RECORDS OF PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA. BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS 
FOLLOWS: 

COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF CONSERVATION AREA TRACT C-4, AVENIR, ACCORDING 
TO THE PLAT THEREOF, AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 127, PAGES 85 THROUGH 109, PUBLIC RECORDS OF 
PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA, THENCE S00°26'57"W, A DISTANCE OF 10.00 FEET; THENCE 
N89°20'55"W, A DISTANCE OF 2443.15 FEET; THENCE N44°20'55"W, A DISTANCE OF 141.42 FEET; THENCE 
N00°39'05"E, A DISTANCE OF 335.17 FEET; THENCE N07°52'46"W, A DISTANCE OF 184.03 FEET TO THE 
POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE N07°52'46"W, A DISTANCE OF 18.21 FEET; THENCE N00°39'05"E, A 
DISTANCE OF 427.54 FEET TO THE BEGINNING OF A CURVE  TO THE RIGHT THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE 
OF 32° 47' 43", HAVING A RADIUS OF 920.00 FEET, HAVING AN ARC DISTANCE OF 526.59 FEET, AND 
WHOSE LONG CHORD BEARS NORTH 17° 02' 56" EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 519.43 FEET; THENCE 
N33°26'47"E, A DISTANCE OF 534.56 FEET; THENCE S61°12'20"E, A DISTANCE OF 34.38 FEET; THENCE 
S77°46'05"E, A DISTANCE OF 37.06 FEET; THENCE N77°06'00"E, A DISTANCE OF 30.67 FEET; THENCE 
N89°39'55"E, A DISTANCE OF 76.04 FEET; THENCE S77°46'05"E, A DISTANCE OF 22.59 FEET; THENCE 
S66°18'21"E, A DISTANCE OF 23.36 FEET; THENCE S46°57'31"E, A DISTANCE OF 42.01 FEET; THENCE 
S61°12'17"E, A DISTANCE OF 11.29 FEET; THENCE S37°07'10"E, A DISTANCE OF 29.20 FEET; THENCE 
S09°50'18"W, A DISTANCE OF 25.36 FEET; THENCE S14°42'49"E, A DISTANCE OF 46.07 FEET; THENCE 
S00°20'06"E, A DISTANCE OF 44.06 FEET; THENCE S18°25'38"E, A DISTANCE OF 75.98 FEET; THENCE 
S34°16'24"E, A DISTANCE OF 44.31 FEET; THENCE S81°51'19"E, A DISTANCE OF 514.37 FEET; THENCE 
N41°33'52"E, A DISTANCE OF 68.17 FEET; THENCE N38°16'28"E, A DISTANCE OF 70.49 FEET; THENCE 
N08°51'58"E, A DISTANCE OF 75.40 FEET; THENCE N04°47'32"E, A DISTANCE OF 59.41 FEET; THENCE 
N16°18'55"E, A DISTANCE OF 56.17 FEET; THENCE N08°10'15"E, A DISTANCE OF 37.63 FEET; THENCE 
N12°18'25"E, A DISTANCE OF 44.07 FEET; THENCE N33°36'07"E, A DISTANCE OF 23.89 FEET; THENCE 
N36°27'01"E, A DISTANCE OF 43.65 FEET; THENCE N41°33'49"E, A DISTANCE OF 38.55 FEET; THENCE 
N09°50'15"E, A DISTANCE OF 68.66 FEET; THENCE N09°50'13"E, A DISTANCE OF 26.79 FEET; THENCE 
N27°57'36"E, A DISTANCE OF 34.41 FEET; THENCE N09°50'12"E, A DISTANCE OF 24.14 FEET; THENCE 
N55°53'36"E, A DISTANCE OF 25.21 FEET; THENCE N41°33'45"E, A DISTANCE OF 38.68 FEET; THENCE 
N27°57'39"E, A DISTANCE OF 34.40 FEET; THENCE N41°33'49"E, A DISTANCE OF 19.58 FEET TO THE POINT 

Page 46



OF CURVATURE OF A CURVE CONCAVE TO THE EAST, HAVING A RADIUS OF 210.00 FEET FROM WHICH A 
RADIAL LINE BEARS NORTH 84°44'28" EAST; THENCE NORTHERLY, ALONG SAID CURVE TO THE RIGHT, 
THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 68°03'25", A DISTANCE OF 249.44 FEET; THENCE N36°02'21"E, A 
DISTANCE OF 47.78 FEET; THENCE N77°05'51"E, A DISTANCE OF 24.23 FEET; THENCE N57°10'15"E, A 
DISTANCE OF 44.32 FEET; THENCE N80°37'01"E, A DISTANCE OF 35.82 FEET; THENCE N69°17'03"E, A 
DISTANCE OF 32.78 FEET; THENCE N89°39'51"E, A DISTANCE OF 24.84 FEET; THENCE S23°49'35"W, A 
DISTANCE OF 53.06 FEET; THENCE S00°20'14"E, A DISTANCE OF 23.41 FEET TO THE POINT OF CURVATURE 
OF A CURVE CONCAVE TO THE SOUTHWEST, HAVING A RADIUS OF 210.00 FEET FROM WHICH A RADIAL 
LINE BEARS SOUTH 17°19'16" WEST; THENCE SOUTHERLY, ALONG SAID CURVE TO THE RIGHT, THROUGH 
A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 33°32'29", A DISTANCE OF 122.94 FEET; THENCE N55°53'30"E, A DISTANCE OF 33.34 
FEET; THENCE N45°58'21"E, A DISTANCE OF 47.10 FEET; THENCE S16°59'18"E, A DISTANCE OF 31.19 FEET; 
THENCE N78°12'30"E, A DISTANCE OF 77.83 FEET; THENCE S74°45'59"E, A DISTANCE OF 65.13 FEET; 
THENCE N89°39'46"E, A DISTANCE OF 72.29 FEET; THENCE N49°46'18"E, A DISTANCE OF 9.00 FEET; 
THENCE S43°30'23"E, A DISTANCE OF 25.02 FEET; THENCE S00°03'55"W, A DISTANCE OF 97.60 FEET; 
THENCE S12°18'21"W, A DISTANCE OF 63.63 FEET; THENCE S00°20'15"E, A DISTANCE OF 60.20 FEET; 
THENCE S14°02'31"W, A DISTANCE OF 52.60 FEET; THENCE S37°07'17"E, A DISTANCE OF 42.65 FEET; 
THENCE S23°49'30"W, A DISTANCE OF 44.23 FEET; THENCE N42°14'12"W, A DISTANCE OF 24.96 FEET; 
THENCE N82°24'20"W, A DISTANCE OF 61.43 FEET; THENCE S60°32'06"W, A DISTANCE OF 28.13 FEET; 
THENCE N27°57'31"W, A DISTANCE OF 36.15 FEET; THENCE S53°03'02"W, A DISTANCE OF 20.58 FEET; 
THENCE S26°48'29"W, A DISTANCE OF 65.19 FEET; THENCE S23°21'44"E, A DISTANCE OF 115.33 FEET TO 
THE POINT OF CURVATURE OF A CURVE CONCAVE TO THE WEST, HAVING A RADIUS OF 210.00 FEET FROM 
WHICH A RADIAL LINE BEARS  SOUTH 56°46'11" WEST; THENCE SOUTHERLY, ALONG SAID CURVE TO THE 
LEFT, THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 58°19'18", A DISTANCE OF 213.76 FEET; THENCE S61°12'40"E, A 
DISTANCE OF 20.46 FEET; THENCE S12°58'46"E, A DISTANCE OF 35.53 FEET; THENCE S41°33'47"W, A 
DISTANCE OF 44.33 FEET; THENCE S89°39'46"W, A DISTANCE OF 43.09 FEET; THENCE S65°38'07"W, A 
DISTANCE OF 31.35 FEET; THENCE S82°36'15"W, A DISTANCE OF 73.71 FEET; THENCE S45°22'58"W, A 
DISTANCE OF 57.85 FEET; THENCE S41°33'49"W, A DISTANCE OF 39.44 FEET; THENCE S51°08'27"W, A 
DISTANCE OF 48.64 FEET; THENCE S41°33'49"W, A DISTANCE OF 48.84 FEET; THENCE S51°08'29"W, A 
DISTANCE OF 52.62 FEET; THENCE S23°49'35"W, A DISTANCE OF 44.18 FEET; THENCE S31°47'43"W, A 
DISTANCE OF 53.27 FEET; THENCE S51°08'26"W, A DISTANCE OF 176.32 FEET; THENCE S57°54'02"W, A 
DISTANCE OF 57.66 FEET; THENCE S50°38'16"W, A DISTANCE OF 76.80 FEET; THENCE S58°41'44"W, A 
DISTANCE OF 61.53 FEET; THENCE N85°56'25"W, A DISTANCE OF 170.76 FEET; THENCE S27°17'31"W, A 
DISTANCE OF 102.37 FEET; THENCE S09°50'18"W, A DISTANCE OF 21.80 FEET; THENCE S64°08'04"W, A 
DISTANCE OF 16.96 FEET; THENCE N63°06'52"W, A DISTANCE OF 70.10 FEET; THENCE N76°54'10"W, A 
DISTANCE OF 79.75 FEET; THENCE N69°57'20"W, A DISTANCE OF 47.36 FEET; THENCE S63°28'14"W, A 
DISTANCE OF 57.06 FEET; THENCE S23°23'47"E, A DISTANCE OF 165.25 FEET; THENCE N64°08'04"E, A 
DISTANCE OF 92.96 FEET; THENCE S55°28'33"E, A DISTANCE OF 75.94 FEET; THENCE N89°39'53"E, A 
DISTANCE OF 55.21 FEET; THENCE S59°02'21"E, A DISTANCE OF 30.45 FEET; THENCE S55°53'38"W, A 
DISTANCE OF 48.00 FEET; THENCE S77°05'57"W, A DISTANCE OF 55.70 FEET; THENCE S55°53'40"W, A 
DISTANCE OF 39.37 FEET; THENCE S46°46'50"W, A DISTANCE OF 53.69 FEET; THENCE S16°11'10"W, A 
DISTANCE OF 117.60 FEET; THENCE S30°22'20"W, A DISTANCE OF 75.26 FEET; THENCE S53°03'09"W, A 
DISTANCE OF 33.68 FEET; THENCE S66°59'00"W, A DISTANCE OF 41.87 FEET; THENCE S77°05'57"W, A 
DISTANCE OF 59.25 FEET; THENCE S51°08'32"W, A DISTANCE OF 47.19 FEET; THENCE S83°18'22"W, A 
DISTANCE OF 46.10 FEET; THENCE S89°39'55"W, A DISTANCE OF 10.47 FEET; FEET TO THE POINT OF 

Page 47



CURVATURE OF A CURVE CONCAVE TO THE NORTH, HAVING A RADIUS OF 210.00 FEET FROM WHICH A 
RADIAL LINE BEARS NORTH 22°11'55" WEST; THENCE WESTERLY, ALONG SAID CURVE TO THE RIGHT, 
THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 67°30'59", A DISTANCE OF 247.46 FEET; THENCE N77°46'06"W, A 
DISTANCE OF 40.31 FEET; THENCE N89°20'55"W, A DISTANCE OF 586.57 FEET TO THE POINT OF 
BEGINNING. 

CONTAINING 51.441 ACRES, MORE OR LESS. 

SUBJECT TO EASEMENTS, RESERVATIONS, AND/OR RIGHTS-OF-WAY OF RECORD. 

 

TOGETHER WITH: 

 

PARCEL A-17:  

A PORTION OF PARCEL "A-1", AVENIR, AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 127, PAGES 85 THROUGH 109 OF THE 
PUBLIC RECORDS OF PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA. BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS 
FOLLOWS: 

BEGINNING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF TRACT RBE5, AVENIR - POD 15, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT 
THEREOF, AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 134, PAGE 179, PUBLIC RECORDS OF PALM BEACH COUNTY, 
FLORIDA, THENCE S00°00'00"E, A DISTANCE OF 702.74 FEET; THENCE N76°54'04"W , A DISTANCE OF 61.66 
FEET; THENCE N61°12'17"W, A DISTANCE OF 23.36 FEET; THENCE N69°57'09"W, A DISTANCE OF 41.20 
FEET; THENCE S89°39'53"W, A DISTANCE OF 25.18 FEET; THENCE N61°12'13"W, A DISTANCE OF 61.48 
FEET; THENCE N31°13'10"W, A DISTANCE OF 44.45 FEET; THENCE N69°57'11"W, A DISTANCE OF 77.99 
FEET; THENCE S41°33'52"W, A DISTANCE OF 77.38 FEET; THENCE S29°46'56"W, A DISTANCE OF 102.67 
FEET; THENCE S10°56'28"W, A DISTANCE OF 48.49 FEET; THENCE S64°07'57"W, A DISTANCE OF 74.67 
FEET; THENCE S51°08'33"W, A DISTANCE OF 58.86 FEET; THENCE S18°15'42"W, A DISTANCE OF 52.35 
FEET; THENCE S45°58'26"W, A DISTANCE OF 39.81 FEET; THENCE S75°45'14"W, A DISTANCE OF 34.79 
FEET; THENCE N64°48'04"W, A DISTANCE OF 28.22 FEET; THENCE N42°13'57"W, A DISTANCE OF 37.50 
FEET; THENCE N50°26'22"W, A DISTANCE OF 57.91 FEET; THENCE N66°18'16"W, A DISTANCE OF 86.11 
FEET; THENCE N74°45'47"W, A DISTANCE OF 42.98 FEET; THENCE N34°16'18"W, A DISTANCE OF 35.51 
FEET; THENCE N12°58'33"W, A DISTANCE OF 15.09 FEET; THENCE N09°50'26"E, A DISTANCE OF 21.75 
FEET; THENCE N27°57'39"E, A DISTANCE OF 64.26 FEET; THENCE N32°31'02"E, A DISTANCE OF 56.10 FEET; 
THENCE N00°19'57"W, A DISTANCE OF 38.63 FEET; THENCE N23°49'35"E, A DISTANCE OF 39.84 FEET; 
THENCE N00°19'58"W, A DISTANCE OF 39.30 FEET; THENCE N16°59'03"W, A DISTANCE OF 62.21 FEET; 
THENCE N24°29'35"W, A DISTANCE OF 44.00 FEET; THENCE N36°00'12"W, A DISTANCE OF 82.68 FEET; 
THENCE N61°12'07"W, A DISTANCE OF 38.75 FEET; THENCE N42°13'54"W, A DISTANCE OF 24.42 FEET; 
THENCE N59°52'00"W, A DISTANCE OF 88.26 FEET; THENCE N16°59'01"W, A DISTANCE OF 31.18 FEET; 
THENCE N28°37'37"W, A DISTANCE OF 32.32 FEET; THENCE N07°38'11"W, A DISTANCE OF 51.67 FEET; 
THENCE N64°30'42"W, A DISTANCE OF 66.09 FEET; THENCE N55°01'27"W, A DISTANCE OF 67.51 FEET; 
THENCE N66°18'49"W, A DISTANCE OF 86.86 FEET; THENCE N76°52'32"W, A DISTANCE OF 123.56 FEET; 
THENCE S66°23'02"W, A DISTANCE OF 78.71 FEET; THENCE S37°43'00"W, A DISTANCE OF 58.63 FEET; 
THENCE S31°46'54"W, A DISTANCE OF 43.18 FEET; THENCE S47°08'30"W, A DISTANCE OF 39.89 FEET; 
THENCE S10°37'59"W, A DISTANCE OF 43.68 FEET; THENCE S14°39'33"E, A DISTANCE OF 74.46 FEET; 

Page 48



THENCE S32°41'23"E, A DISTANCE OF 128.59 FEET; THENCE S00°19'58"E, A DISTANCE OF 52.88 FEET; 
THENCE S10°30'19"E, A DISTANCE OF 59.29 FEET; THENCE S09°50'25"W, A DISTANCE OF 30.57 FEET; 
THENCE S08°32'27"E, A DISTANCE OF 154.84 FEET; THENCE S00°19'56"E, A DISTANCE OF 90.53 FEET; 
THENCE S06°01'34"E, A DISTANCE OF 48.17 FEET; THENCE S28°56'55"W, A DISTANCE OF 43.10 FEET; 
THENCE S49°46'26"W, A DISTANCE OF 20.81 FEET; THENCE N88°20'38"W, A DISTANCE OF 326.99 FEET; 
THENCE N20°04'26"W, A DISTANCE OF 72.96 FEET; THENCE N28°37'35"W, A DISTANCE OF 42.25 FEET; 
THENCE N24°29'36"W, A DISTANCE OF 53.12 FEET; THENCE N28°37'29"W, A DISTANCE OF 32.76 FEET; 
THENCE N16°59'06"W, A DISTANCE OF 22.02 FEET; THENCE N42°13'47"W, A DISTANCE OF 36.82 FEET; 
THENCE N72°40'02"W, A DISTANCE OF 48.62 FEET; THENCE N81°17'06"W, A DISTANCE OF 42.39 FEET; 
THENCE S89°40'03"W,  A DISTANCE OF 50.90 FEET; THENCE S89°40'09"W, A DISTANCE OF 45.46 FEET; 
THENCE S80°37'16"W, A DISTANCE OF 36.84 FEET; THENCE N50°26'18"W, A DISTANCE OF 125.08 FEET; 
THENCE S79°08'44"W, A DISTANCE OF 49.04 FEET; THENCE S60°32'13"W, A DISTANCE OF 25.65 FEET; 
THENCE S75°45'26"W, A DISTANCE OF 51.44 FEET; THENCE S55°53'47"W , A DISTANCE OF 39.24 FEET; 
THENCE S45°58'32"W, A DISTANCE OF 58.18 FEET; THENCE S30°33'15"W, A DISTANCE OF 43.33 FEET; 
THENCE S41°34'00"W, A DISTANCE OF 72.59 FEET; THENCE S38°34'25"W, A DISTANCE OF 77.47 FEET; 
THENCE S72°00'17"W, A DISTANCE OF 21.09 FEET; THENCE N56°33'35"W, A DISTANCE OF 25.80 FEET; 
THENCE N79°48'27"W, A DISTANCE OF 44.11 FEET; THENCE S80°03'10"W, A DISTANCE OF 40.08 FEET; 
THENCE N50°37'10"W, A DISTANCE OF 79.29 FEET; THENCE S77°06'13"W, A DISTANCE OF 36.50 FEET; 
THENCE N83°58'18"W, A DISTANCE OF 42.56 FEET; THENCE N48°36'29"W, A DISTANCE OF 23.11 FEET; 
THENCE N24°29'29"W, A DISTANCE OF 27.74 FEET; THENCE N53°42'58"W, A DISTANCE OF 44.64 FEET; 
THENCE N42°13'42"W, A DISTANCE OF 54.83 FEET; THENCE N79°48'29"W, A DISTANCE OF 76.43 FEET; 
THENCE N53°42'58"W, A DISTANCE OF 13.90 FEET; THENCE N61°11'57"W, A DISTANCE OF 47.99 FEET; 
THENCE S79°08'44"W, A DISTANCE OF 64.76 FEET; THENCE N69°57'02"W, A DISTANCE OF 4.12 FEET; 
THENCE N00°45'13"E, A DISTANCE OF 406.07 FEET; THENCE N53°23'37"W, A DISTANCE OF 30.62 FEET; 
THENCE N01°16'44"E, A DISTANCE OF 25.48 FEET; THENCE N90°00'00"E, A DISTANCE OF 550.00 FEET; 
THENCE N01°16'44"E, A DISTANCE OF 380.00 FEET; THENCE N90°00'00"E, A DISTANCE OF 2270.37 FEET 
TO THE BEGINNING OF A CURVE  TO THE RIGHT THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 59° 03' 01", HAVING A 
RADIUS OF 100.00 FEET, HAVING AN ARC DISTANCE OF 103.06 FEET, AND WHOSE LONG CHORD BEARS 
SOUTH 60° 28' 30" EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 98.56 FEET TO THE BEGINNING OF A CURVE  TO THE LEFT 
THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 28° 06' 02", HAVING A RADIUS OF 250.00 FEET, HAVING AN ARC 
DISTANCE OF 122.61 FEET, AND WHOSE LONG CHORD BEARS SOUTH 45° 00' 00" EAST FOR A DISTANCE 
OF 121.39 FEET TO THE BEGINNING OF A CURVE  TO THE RIGHT THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 59° 03' 
01", HAVING A RADIUS OF 100.00 FEET, HAVING AN ARC DISTANCE OF 103.06 FEET, AND WHOSE LONG 
CHORD BEARS SOUTH 29° 31' 30" EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 98.56 FEET; THENCE, SOUTH 00° 00' 00" EAST 
FOR A DISTANCE OF 17.00 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

 

CONTAINING 53.175 ACRES, MORE OR LESS. 

 

SUBJECT TO EASEMENTS, RESERVATIONS, AND/OR RIGHTS-OF-WAY OF RECORD. 

 

 

Page 49



TOGETHER WITH: 

 

PARCEL A-16:  

 

A PORTION OF PARCEL "A-1", AVENIR, AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 127, PAGES 85 THROUGH 109 OF THE 
PUBLIC RECORDS OF PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA. BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS 
FOLLOWS: 

COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF PARCEL TRACT RBE6, AVENIR - POD 15, ACCORDING TO 
THE PLAT THEREOF, AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 134, PAGE 179, PUBLIC RECORDS OF PALM BEACH 
COUNTY, FLORIDA; THENCE, NORTH 00° 00' 00" EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 20.00 FEET TO THE POINT OF 
BEGINNING; THENCE, NORTH 90° 00' 00" WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 3199.91 FEET; THENCE, NORTH 01° 
30' 51" EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 2231.97 FEET; THENCE, NORTH 40° 12' 41" EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 
37.09 FEET; THENCE, NORTH 02° 11' 39" EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 830.19 FEET; THENCE, NORTH 90° 00' 
00" EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 1253.00 FEET TO THE BEGINNING OF A NON-TANGENT CURVE TO THE RIGHT 
THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 06° 43' 16", HAVING A RADIUS OF 859.00 FEET, HAVING AN ARC 
DISTANCE OF 100.77 FEET, AND WHOSE LONG CHORD BEARS SOUTH 06° 21' 05" WEST FOR A DISTANCE 
OF 100.71 FEET TO THE BEGINNING OF REVERS CURVETURE OF A CURVE TO THE LEFT THROUGH A 
CENTRAL ANGLE OF 09° 42' 43", HAVING A RADIUS OF 1285.00 FEET, HAVING AN ARC DISTANCE OF 217.82 
FEET, AND WHOSE LONG CHORD BEARS SOUTH 04° 51' 22" WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 217.55 FEET; 
THENCE, SOUTH 00° 00' 00" EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 260.45 FEET TO THE BEGINNING OF A CURVE TO 
THE LEFT THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 47° 58' 46", HAVING A RADIUS OF 615.00 FEET, HAVING AN 
ARC DISTANCE OF 515.00 FEET, AND WHOSE LONG CHORD BEARS SOUTH 23° 59' 23" EAST FOR A 
DISTANCE OF 500.09 FEET; THENCE, SOUTH 47° 58' 46" EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 66.28 FEET; THENCE, 
SOUTH 49° 54' 25" WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 90.10 FEET TO THE BEGINNING OF A CURVE  TO THE LEFT 
THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 106° 38' 09", HAVING A RADIUS OF 271.00 FEET, HAVING AN ARC 
DISTANCE OF 504.37 FEET, AND WHOSE LONG CHORD BEARS SOUTH 03° 24' 40" EAST FOR A DISTANCE 
OF 434.66 FEET TO THE BEGINNING OF REVERS CURVETURE OF A CURVE TO THE RIGHT THROUGH A 
CENTRAL ANGLE OF 20° 16' 05", HAVING A RADIUS OF 1259.00 FEET, HAVING AN ARC DISTANCE OF 445.37 
FEET, AND WHOSE LONG CHORD BEARS SOUTH 46° 35' 41" EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 443.05 FEET TO THE 
BEGINNING OF A COMPOUND CURVETURE OF A CURVE TO THE RIGHT THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 
02° 55' 44", HAVING A RADIUS OF 1074.00 FEET, HAVING AN ARC DISTANCE OF 54.90 FEET, AND WHOSE 
LONG CHORD BEARS SOUTH 33° 18' 12" EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 54.90 FEET TO THE BEGINNING OF 
REVERS CURVETURE OF A CURVE TO THE LEFT THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 101° 32' 25", HAVING A 
RADIUS OF 266.00 FEET, HAVING AN ARC DISTANCE OF 471.41 FEET, AND WHOSE LONG CHORD BEARS 
SOUTH 82° 36' 32" EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 412.09 FEET; THENCE, NORTH 46° 37' 16" EAST FOR A 
DISTANCE OF 214.46 FEET; THENCE, SOUTH 65° 34' 41" EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 57.76 FEET TO THE 
BEGINNING OF A CURVE  TO THE LEFT THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 24° 25' 19", HAVING A RADIUS OF 
885.00 FEET, HAVING AN ARC DISTANCE OF 377.23 FEET, AND WHOSE LONG CHORD BEARS SOUTH 77° 
47' 21" EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 374.38 FEET; THENCE, NORTH 90° 00' 00" EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 
225.20 FEET; THENCE, SOUTH 00° 00' 00" EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 192.48 FEET TO THE BEGINNING OF A 
CURVE  TO THE LEFT THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 90° 00' 00", HAVING A RADIUS OF 75.00 FEET, 
HAVING AN ARC DISTANCE OF 117.81 FEET, AND WHOSE LONG CHORD BEARS SOUTH 45° 00' 00" EAST 

Page 50



FOR A DISTANCE OF 106.07 FEET; THENCE, SOUTH 90° 00' 00" EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 254.16 FEET; 
THENCE, SOUTH 00° 00' 00" EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 651.84 FEET TO THE BEGINNING OF A CURVE  TO 
THE RIGHT THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 59° 03' 01", HAVING A RADIUS OF 100.00 FEET, HAVING AN 
ARC DISTANCE OF 103.06 FEET, AND WHOSE LONG CHORD BEARS SOUTH 29° 31' 30" WEST FOR A 
DISTANCE OF 98.56 FEET TO THE BEGINNING OF A CURVE  TO THE LEFT THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 
28° 06' 02", HAVING A RADIUS OF 250.00 FEET, HAVING AN ARC DISTANCE OF 122.61 FEET, AND WHOSE 
LONG CHORD BEARS SOUTH 45° 00' 00" WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 121.39 FEET TO THE BEGINNING OF A 
CURVE  TO THE RIGHT THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 59° 03' 01", HAVING A RADIUS OF 100.00 FEET, 
HAVING AN ARC DISTANCE OF 103.06 FEET, AND WHOSE LONG CHORD BEARS SOUTH 60° 28' 30" WEST 
FOR A DISTANCE OF 98.56 FEET; THENCE, NORTH 90° 00' 00" WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 17.00 FEET; 
THENCE, SOUTH 00° 00' 00" EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 20.00 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

 

CONTAINING 150.323 ACRES MORE OR LESS. 

 

SUBJECT TO EASEMENTS, RESERVATIONS, AND/OR RIGHTS-OF-WAY OF RECORD. 

 

 

 

 

Page 51



ballbé & associates, inc.

PART II - GENERAL INFORMATION
Exhibit 4 Assessment Area Three – 2023 Project Area Plan

Page 52



Page 53



ballbé & associates, inc.

PART III: PLANNED IMPROVEMENTS
Exhibit 5 Conceptual Mitigation Plan (“CMP”)

Page 54



 

Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Scientific name)

Pinus elliottii
Myrsine guianensis

Ilex cassine
Serenoa repens

Ilex glabra
Lyonia lucida

Lyonia ferruginea
Psychotria nervosa

Eragrostis elliottii
Eragrostis spectabilis

Aristida stricta
Tripsacum dactyloides

Muhlenbergia capillaris

Scientific name)

Ilex glabra
Lyonia lucida

Eragrostis elliottii
Eragrostis spectabilis

Aristida stricta
Tripsacum dactyloides

Muhlenbergia capillaris

Page 62



Scientific name)

Pinus elliottii
Myrsine cubana

Chrysobalanus icaco
Cephalanthus occidentalis

Lyonia lucida
Spartina bakeri
Tripsacum floridana

Rhynchospora 
Cladium jamaicense

Hypericum
Aristida stricta

Blechnum serrulatum
Eragrostis spectabilis

Eragrostis elliottii

Page 63



Spartina bakeri
Tripsacum dactyloides

Rhynchospora 
Cladium jamaicense
Eleocharis cellulosa

Page 64



Scientific name

Cephalanthus occidentalis
Sagittaria lancifolia

Pontederia cordata
Canna flaccida

Cladium jamaicense
Eleocharis cellulosa

Scirpus californicus
Thalia geniculata

Nymphaea odorata

Taxodium
Magnolia virginiana

Persea palustris
Quercus laurifolia
Annona glabra

Ficus aurea
Myrsine cubana

Chrysobalanus icaco

Page 65



Cephalanthus occidentalis
Myrica cerifera

Saururus cernuus

Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Scientific name)

Spartina bakeri
Tripsacum floridana

Chrysobalanus icaco
Cephalanthus occidentalis

Sagittaria lancifolia 
Pontederia cordata
Canna flaccida

Rhynchospora 
Cladium jamaicense
Eleocharis cellulosa

Scirpus californicus
Thalia geniculata

Nymphaea odorata

Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



1000 SE Monterey Commons Blvd., Suite 208 
Stuart, FL  34996

772-287-8771     Fax 772-287-2988
www.ewconsultants.com

AVENIR
LOCATION MAP

EW Consultants, Inc. FEB 2017
FIGURE

1

Page 83



FIGURE
EW Consultants, Inc.

1000 SE Monterey Commons Blvd., Suite 208

Stuart, FL  34996

772-287-8771     Fax 772-287-2988

www.ewconsultants.com

AERIAL PHOTO

2

FEB 2017

AVENIR

Page 84



FIGURE
EW Consultants, Inc.

1000 SE Monterey Commons Blvd., Suite 208

Stuart, FL  34996

772-287-8771     Fax 772-287-2988

www.ewconsultants.com

CONSERVATION AREA MAP

3

FEB 2017

AVENIR

Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



equivalent residential unit 

Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Appendix 7

Page 100



Appendix 7

Page 101



Appendix 7

Page 102



Appendix 7

Page 103



Appendix 7

Page 104



Appendix 7

Page 105



Appendix 7

Page 106



Appendix 7

Page 107



Appendix 7

Page 108



����������	
���� ����������������������������������������

�����	��   !"�������������������!��# ���

$%&'())*+(,-&�.,/%'(&012345678�49�0:3;�<7:=6�>:43?�<1549755�@7A47B�C9�D:91:E?�FGH�IJIKLMNOPQMR0:3;�<7:=6�SC19T?HUMPQNV�WVXPYZ[\S]�Ẑ�_]̀@\Ya�[Z�b]cd�̀Y>0@Zc\>]�̂Z@�[_]�SZbb]S[\ZY�̀Y>]ŶZ@S]e]Y[�ẐYZYf̀>�c̀bZ@]e�g0]S\̀b�̀gg]gge]Y[gh̀gg]gge]Y[�̀@]̀�[_@]]iYCT4=7�45�67E72?�j4A79�T6:T�T67�<C:E8�Ck�g1l7EA45CE5�hT67�m<C:E8mi�Ck�T67�̀A794E�SC;;194T?�>7A73Cl;79T�>45TE4=T�hT67m>45TE4=TmiH�3C=:T78�49�0:3;�<7:=6�a:E8795H�̂3CE48:H�B433�=C981=T�:�l1234=�67:E49j�TC�37A?�9C9f:8�A:3CE7;�5l7=4:3�:55755;79T5:j:495T�=7ET:49�lECl7ET475�B4T649�T67�2C198:E475�Ck�T67�>45TE4=Tn�[67�j797E:3�3C=:T4C9�Ck�T6757�̀55755;79T�̀E7:�[6E77\;lECA7;79T5�45�3C=:T78�:llECo4;:T73?�B4T649�T67�B75T7E9�KpqnqqK�rsf�:=E75�Ck�T67�>45TE4=TH�B64=6�>45TE4=T�TCT:35:llECo4;:T73?�IHtIGnq�:=E75�3C=:T78�:llECo4;:T73?�C97�hFi�;437�7:5T�Ck�0E:TTfu64T97?�@C:8�C9�T67�YCET6�g487�Ck�YCET63:v7<C137A:E8n[67�l1ElC57�Ck�T67�5l7=4:3�:55755;79T5�45�TC�k198�T67�=C5T�Ck�=7ET:49�49kE:5TE1=T1E7�4;lECA7;79T5�TC�=7ET:49�lECl7ET475B4T649�T67�:E7:�875=E4278�:2CA7n�[67�9:T1E7�Ck�T67�\;lECA7;79T5�j797E:33?�=C9545T5�Ck�51Ek:=7�B:T7E�;:9:j7;79T�:988E:49:j7�5?5T7;H�49=31849j�E73:T78�3:98�:=w1454T4C9H�;:5T7E�8E:49:j7�5?5T7;�:98�8E:49:j7�l1;l�5T:T4C9H�B:5T7B:T7E=C337=T4C9sTE:95;4554C9�5?5T7;H�B:T7E�845TE421T4C9�5?5T7;H�EC:8B:?5�49=31849j�E73:T78�3:98�:=w1454T4C9H�Cl79�5l:=7�:98E7=E7:T4C9�:E7:5H�49=31849j�3:98�:=w1454T4C9H�3:985=:l49jH�4EE4j:T4C9H�79TE:9=7�k7:T1E75H�6:E85=:l75H�=C957EA:T4C9�:E7:;4T4j:T4C9H�:98�CT67E�E73:T78�4;lECA7;79T5H�:33�:5�875=E4278�;CE7�l:ET4=13:E3?�49�T67�̂C1ET6�̀;798;79T�TC�T67�̂4kT6g1ll37;79T:3�]9j4977Ex5�@7lCET�f�̀55755;79T�̀E7:�[6E77H�8:T78�Z=TC27E�FGH�IJIIH�lE7l:E78�2?�<:3327�y�̀55C=4:T75H�:98�49T67�l3:95�:98�5l7=4k4=:T4C95�C9�k437�49�T67�Ckk4=75�Ck�gl7=4:3�>45TE4=T�g7EA4=75H�\9=nH�IqJF̀�<1E95�@C:8H�0:3;�<7:=6�a:E8795H3̂CE48:�KKtFJ�hT67�m\;lECA7;79T5min�̀�875=E4lT4C9�Ck�7:=6�lECl7ET?�TC�27�:5575578�:98�T67�:;C19T�TC�27�:5575578�TC�7:=6l47=7�CE�l:E=73�Ck�lECl7ET?�;:?�27�:5=7ET:4978�2?�:33�l7E5C95�49T7E75T78�49�T67�Ckk4=75�Ck�gl7=4:3�>45TE4=T�g7EA4=75H�\9=n�IqJF̀<1E95�@C:8H�0:3;�<7:=6�a:E8795H�̂3CE48:�KKtFJn�̀l1234=�67:E49j�TC�E7=74A7�=C;;79T5�kEC;�:kk7=T78�lECl7ET?�CB97E5�:5�TC�T67�lEClE47T?�:98�:8A45:2434T?�Ck�;:v49j�51=6\;lECA7;79T5H�:5�TC�T67�=C5T�T67E7Ck�:5�TC�T67�;:997E�Ck�l:?;79T�T67E7Ckz�:98�:5�TC�T67�:;C19T�T67E7Ck�TC�27�:5575578:j:495T�7:=6�l:E=73�B433�27�6738�C9�D:91:E?�I{H�IJIKH�:T�FI|KJ�ln;n�:T�T67�Ckk4=75�Ck�gl7=4:3�>45TE4=T�g7EA4=75H�\9=n�IqJF̀�<1E95@C:8H�0:3;�<7:=6�a:E8795H�̂3CE48:�KKtFJn3̀3�:kk7=T78�lECl7ET?�CB97E5�6:A7�:�E4j6T�TC�:ll7:E�:T�T67�l1234=�67:E49jn�̀=T4C95�T:v79�2?�T67�<C:E8�:T�T645�l1234=�67:E49jHCE�:5�T67�67:E49j�;:?�27�=C9T49178H�49�:8ClT49j�:�k49:3�:55755;79T�E75C31T4C9�56:33�27�T67�k49:3�:8}184=:T4C9�Ck�T67�512}7=TlE7579T78H�49=31849j�T67�37A?�Ck�T67�9C9f:8�A:3CE7;�5l7=4:3�:55755;79T5H�T67�:5=7ET:49;79T�:98�87=3:E:T4C9�Ck�5l7=4:32797k4T5�l7=134:E�TC�T67�lECl7ET?H�T67�k:4E9755�:98�E7:5C9:2379755�Ck�T67�81T?�TC�l:?�:98�T67�E:T7�Ck�:55755;79TH�193755lECl7E�5T7l5�:E7�494T4:T78�49�:�=C1ET�Ck�=C;l7T79T�}1E4584=T4C9�B4T649�T79�hFJi�BCEv49j�8:?5�Ck�T67�8:T7�Ck�<C:E8�:=T4C9�:T�T6767:E49jn\k�:9?�l7E5C9�87=4875�TC�:ll7:3�:9?�87=454C9�;:87�B4T6�E75l7=T�TC�:9?�;:TT7E�=C95487E78�:T�T645�01234=�_7:E49jH�51=6l7E5C95�B433�9778�:�E7=CE8�Ck�T67�lEC=77849j5�:98�kCE�51=6�l1ElC57�5:48�l7E5C9�;:?�9778�TC�7951E7�T6:T�:�A7E2:T4;�E7=CE8Ck�T67�lEC=77849j�45�;:87�:T�T674E�CB9�7ol7957�:98�B64=6�E7=CE8�49=31875�T67�T75T4;C9?�:98�7A4879=7�C9�B64=6�T67�:ll7:345�2:578n\9�:==CE8:9=7�B4T6�T67�̀;7E4=:95�B4T6�>45:2434T475�̀=TH�T645�8C=1;79T�;:?�27�E7w175T78�49�:9�:3T7E9:T4A7�kCE;:Tn�̀1o434:E?:485�CE�57EA4=75�B433�:35C�27�lECA4878�1lC9�E7w175T�B4T6�:T�37:5T�k4A7�hqi�8:?5x�9CT4=7�lE4CE�TC�T67�lEC=77849jn�037:57�=C9T:=TT67�>45TE4=T�e:9:j7E�:T�hq{Fi�{KJft~II�CE�TC33�kE77�:T�hpGGi�GKGft~II�kCE�:5545T:9=7n�\k�67:E49j�4;l:4E78H�T737l6C97�T673̂CE48:�@73:?�g7EA4=7�hpJJi�~qqfpGGF�h[>>i�kCE�:5545T:9=7n
Page 109



����������	
���� ����������������������������������������

�����	��   !"�������������������!��# ���

$%&'()�*+,,-'(./�0&%&1+2,&'.�0(3.)(*.44456789:;<==5>;?@A@BC@D�EFCGHABBBBGFIGJJ2

Page 110



����������	
���� ����������������������������������������

�����	��   !"�������������������!��# ���

$%&'())*+(,-&�.,/%'(&012345678�49�0:3;�<7:=6�>:43?�<1549755�@7A47B�C9�D:91:E?�FGH�IJIKLMNOPQMR0:3;�<7:=6�SC19T?HUMPQNV�WVXP@YZ[\]̂_[̀ �̀[a�IJIIbFcd�@YZ[\]̂_[̀ �[e�̂fY�<[d@>�[e�Z]0Y@g_Z[@Z�[e�̂fY�dgỲ_@�S[hh]̀ _̂i�>YgY\[0hỲ �̂>_Ẑ@_Ŝ�>YS\d@_̀jZ0YS_d\�dZZYZZhỲ Ẑ�kdZZYZZhỲ �̂d@Yd�̂f@YYlm�_̀>_Sd̂_̀j�̂fY�\[Sd̂_[̀ H�̀d̂]@Y�d̀ >�YẐ_hd̂Y>�S[Ẑ�[ef̂[ZY�_h0@[gYhỲ Ẑ�nf_Sf�S[Ẑ�_Z�̂[�<Y�>Ye@diY>�_̀�0d@̂�<i�̂fY�Z0YS_d\�dZZYZZhỲ Ẑm�0@[g_>_̀j�̂fY0[@̂_[̀ �[e�̂fY�YẐ_hd̂Y>�S[Ẑ�[e�̂fY�_h0@[gYhỲ Ẑ�̂[�<Y�0d@̂_d\\i�>Ye@diY>�<i�̂fY�Z0YS_d\�dZZYZZhỲ Ẑm0@[g_>_̀j�̂fY�hd̀ Ỳ@�_̀�nf_Sf�Z]Sf�Z0YS_d\�dZZYZZhỲ Ẑ�Zfd\\�<Y�hd>Ym�0@[g_>_̀j�nfỲ�Z]Sf�Z0YS_d\dZZYZZhỲ Ẑ�Zfd\\�<Y�hd>Ym�>YZ_j̀ d̂_̀j�\d̀ >Z�]0[̀ �nf_Sf�̂fY�Z0YS_d\�dZZYZZhỲ Ẑ�Zfd\\�<Y�\Yg_Y>m0@[g_>_̀j�e[@�d̀ �dZZYZZhỲ �̂0\d̂�e[@�dZZYZZhỲ �̂d@Yd�̂f@YYm�d]̂f[@_o_̀j�̂fY�0@Y0d@d̂_[̀ �[e�d0@Y\_h_̀d@i�dZZYZZhỲ �̂@[\\m�0@[g_>_̀j�e[@�d�0]<\_S�fYd@_̀j�̂[�S[̀ Z_>Y@�̂fY�d>g_Zd<_\_̂i�d̀ >�0@[0@_Ŷi[e�Zd_>�dZZYZZhỲ Ẑ�d̀ >�̂fY�@Y\d̂Y>�_h0@[gYhỲ Ẑm�0@[g_>_̀j�e[@�̀[̂_SY�[e�Zd_>�0]<\_S�fYd@_̀jm0@[g_>_̀j�e[@�0]<\_Sd̂_[̀ �[e�̂f_Z�@YZ[\]̂_[̀ anfY@YdZH�T67�<C:E8�Cp�Z1q7EA45CE5�kr<C:E8rl�Cp�T67�dA794E�SC;;194T?�>7A73Cq;79T�>45TE4=T�kr>45TE4=Trl�67E72?�87T7E;4975TC�=C95TE1=T�:98sCE�:=t14E7�=7ET:49�q1234=�4;qECA7;79T5�57T�pCET6�49�T67�eC1ET6�d;798;79T�TC�T67�e4pT6�Z1qq37;79T:3Y9u4977Ev5�@7qCET�b�d55755;79T�dE7:�̂6E77H�qE7q:E78�2?�<:3327�w�d55C=4:T75H�:98�8:T78�[=TC27E�FGH�IJIIH�:5�:;79878�pEC;T4;7�TC�T4;7�kT67�rY9u4977Ev5�@7qCETrlH�B64=6�Y9u4977Ev5�@7qCET�45�49=CEqCE:T78�2?�E7p7E79=7�:5�q:ET�Cp�T645�@75C31T4C9H�:98�49T67�q3:95�:98�5q7=4p4=:T4C95H�:33�Cp�B64=6�:E7�:A:43:237�pCE�E7A47B�:T�T67�Cpp4=75�Cp�Zq7=4:3�>45TE4=T�Z7EA4=75H�_9=aH�IcJFd�<1E95@C:8H�0:3;�<7:=6�j:E8795H�e3CE48:�KKxFJ�kT67�r_;qECA7;79T5rlmnfY@YdZH�T67�>45TE4=T�45�7;qCB7E78�2?�S6:qT7E5�FGJH�FyJ�:98�FyGH�e3CE48:�ZT:T1T75H�TC�p49:9=7H�p198H�q3:9H�75T:23456H:=t14E7H�=C95TE1=T�CE�E7=C95TE1=TH�793:Eu7�CE�7zT798H�7t14qH�Cq7E:T7H�:98�;:49T:49�T67�_;qECA7;79T5�:98�TC�4;qC57H�37A?H:98�=C337=T�T67�d55755;79T5�k:5�87p4978�273CBlmnfY@YdZH�T67�<C:E8�p4985�T6:T�4T�45�49�T67�275T�49T7E75T�Cp�T67�>45TE4=T�TC�q:?�T67�=C5T�Cp�T67�_;qECA7;79T5�2?�4;qC549uH37A?49uH�:98�=C337=T49u�5q7=4:3�:55755;79T5�q1E51:9T�TC�S6:qT7E5�FGJH�FyJ�:98�FyGH�e3CE48:�ZT:T1T75�kT67�rd55755;79T5rlmnfY@YdZH�T67�>45TE4=T�67E72?�87T7E;4975�T6:T�2797p4T5�B433�:==E17�TC�T67�qECq7ET?�4;qECA78�B4T649�d55755;79T�dE7:�̂6E77HT67�:;C19T�Cp�T6C57�2797p4T5H�:98�T6:T�T67�d55755;79T5�B433�27�;:87�49�qECqCET4C9�TC�T67�2797p4T5�E7=74A78�:5�57T�pCET6�49T67�>45TE4=Tv5�h:5T7E�Zq7=4:3�d55755;79T�h7T6C8C3Cu?�@7qCET�b�_9pE:5TE1=T1E7�0EC{7=T�Zq7=4:3�d55755;79T�<C985�pCEd55755;79T�dE7:�̂6E77H�8:T78�>7=7;27E�FcH�IJIIH�:5�;:?�27�:;79878�:98�51qq37;79T78�pEC;�T4;7�TC�T4;7�kT67rd55755;79T�h7T6C8C3Cu?rl�:TT:=678�TC�T645�@75C31T4C9�:5�Yz6424T�rdr�:98�49=CEqCE:T78�2?�E7p7E79=7�:5�q:ET�Cp�T645@75C31T4C9�:98�C9�p437�49�T67�Cpp4=75�Cp�Zq7=4:3�>45TE4=T�Z7EA4=75H�_9=a�3C=:T78�:T�IcJFd�<1E95�@C:8H�0:3;�<7:=6�j:E8795He3CE48:�KKxFJanfY@YdZH�T67�>45TE4=T�67E72?�87T7E;4975�T6:T�T67�d55755;79T5�TC�27�37A478�B433�9CT�7z=778�T67�2797p4T5�TC�T67�qECq7ET?4;qECA78a[̀nH�̂fY@Ye[@YH�<Y�_̂�@YZ[\gY>�<i�̂fY�<[d@>�[e�Z]0Y@g_Z[@Z�[e�̂fY�dA794E�S[hh]̀ _̂i�>YgY\[0hỲ �̂>_Ẑ@_Ŝf̂d̂|Z7=T4C9�Fa�̂67�:2CA7�E7=4T:35�:E7�67E72?�:8CqT78aZ7=T4C9�Ia�d55755;79T5�56:33�27�37A478�TC�87pE:?�:�qCET4C9�Cp�T67�=C5T�Cp�T67�_;qECA7;79T5�k67E749�T67�rd55755;79T�dE7:6̂E77�_;qECA7;79T5rlaZ7=T4C9�Ka�̂67�9:T1E7�Cp�T67�d55755;79T�dE7:�̂6E77�_;qECA7;79T5�u797E:33?�=C9545T5�Cp�51Ep:=7�B:T7E�;:9:u7;79T�:988E:49:u7�5?5T7;H�49=31849u�E73:T78�3:98�:=t1454T4C9H�;:5T7E�8E:49:u7�5?5T7;�:98�8E:49:u7�q1;q�5T:T4C9H�B:5T7B:T7E=C337=T4C9sTE:95;4554C9�5?5T7;H�B:T7E�845TE421T4C9�5?5T7;H�EC:8B:?5�49=31849u�E73:T78�3:98�:=t1454T4C9H�Cq79�5q:=7�:98E7=E7:T4C9�:E7:5H�49=31849u�3:98�:=t1454T4C9H�3:985=:q49uH�4EE4u:T4C9H�79TE:9=7�p7:T1E75H�6:E85=:q75H�=C957EA:T4C9�:E7:;4T4u:T4C9H�:98�CT67E�E73:T78�4;qECA7;79T5H�:33�:5�875=E4278�;CE7�q:ET4=13:E3?�49�T67�Y9u4977Ev5�@7qCET�:98�49�T67�q3:95�:985q7=4p4=:T4C95�C9�p437�49�T67�Cpp4=75�Cp�Zq7=4:3�>45TE4=T�Z7EA4=75H�_9=a�3C=:T78�:T�IcJFd�<1E95�@C:8H�0:3;�<7:=6�j:E8795H�e3CE48:
Page 111



����������	
���� ����������������������������������������

�����	��   !"�������������������!��# ���

$$%&'(�)*+,*�-./+.00123�405617�8.9�5:8.3�8.9�350,+;+,87+6.3�810�<=�350,+;+,�10;010.,0�+.,615618709�*010+.�8.9�>890�8�5817*0106;?@0,7+6.�%?�A*0�/0.018:�:6,87+6.�6;�7*030�B33033>0.7�B108�A*100�C>516D0>0.73�+3�:6,8709�85516E+>870:=�)+7*+.�8.9�<0.0;+77*0�)03701.�$FG?GG$�HIJ�8,103�6;�7*0�K+371+,7(�)*+,*�K+371+,7�7678:3�85516E+>870:=�L%LM?G�8,103�:6,8709�85516E+>870:=�6.0�N&O>+:0�0837�6;�P1877JQ*+7.0=�4689�6.�7*0�R617*�@+90�6;�R617*:8S0�T6U:0D819?@0,7+6.�G?�A*0�037+>8709�,637�6;�7*0�B33033>0.7�B108�A*100�C>516D0>0.73�+3�85516E+>870:=�VMG('''('''�N*010+.8;70110;01109�76�83�7*0�W-37+>8709�X637WO?@0,7+6.�Y?�A*0�B33033>0.73�)+::�90;18=�85516E+>870:=�V&''('''('''�)*+,*�+.,:U903�8�5617+6.�6;�7*0�-37+>8709�X637(�5:U3;+.8.,+./�10:8709�,6373(�,85+78:+Z09�+.701037(�8�90<7�301D+,0�10301D0�8.9�,6.7+./0.,=?@0,7+6.�M?�A*0�>8..01�+.�)*+,*�7*0�B33033>0.73�3*8::�<0�855617+6.09�8.9�58+9�+3�,6.78+.09�)+7*+.�7*0�B33033>0.7[07*696:6/=?�C.+7+8::=(�7*0�B33033>0.73�)+::�<0�:0D+09�6.�8�501�8,10�<83+3�3+.,0�7*0�B33033>0.7�B108�A*100�C>516D0>0.73+.,10830�7*0�D8:U0�6;�8::�7*0�:8.93�)+7*+.�B33033>0.7�B108�A*100�6;�7*0�K+371+,7?�\.�8.9�8;701�7*0�9870�7*0�<0.0;+709�:8.93)+7*+.�B33033>0.7�B108�A*100�6;�7*0�K+371+,7�810�350,+;+,8::=�5:87709(�7*0�B33033>0.73�)+::�<0�:0D+09�6.�8�501�U.+7�<83+3?�].7+:3U,*�7+>0�7*87�8::�<0.0;+709�:8.93�)+7*+.�7*0�K+371+,7�810�350,+;+,8::=�5:87709(�7*0�>8..01�<=�)*+,*�7*0�B33033>0.73�)+::�<0+>56309�3*8::�<0�8�,6><+.87+6.�6;�8�501�8,10�<83+3�8.9�8�501�U.+7�<83+3�8::�+.�8,,6198.,0�)+7*�7*0�>07*696:6/=�307�;617*�+.8778,*09�-E*+<+7�WB?W@0,7+6.�F?�A*0�B33033>0.73�3*8::�<0�:0D+09�6.�7*630�:673�8.9�:8.93�)+7*+.�B33033>0.7�B108�A*100�)+7*+.�7*0�K+371+,7(�83903,1+<09�+.�7*0�B33033>0.7�[07*696:6/=(�)*+,*�810�89̂6+.+./�8.9�,6.7+/U6U3�61�<6U.9+./�8.9�8<U77+./�U56.�7*0B33033>0.7�B108�A*100�C>516D0>0.73�61�350,+8::=�<0.0;+709�7*010<=�8.9�;U17*01�903+/.8709�6.�7*0�833033>0.7�5:8710;010.,09�<0:6)?@0,7+6.�_?�A*010�+3�6.�;+:0�+.�7*0�6;;+,03�6;�@50,+8:�K+371+,7�@01D+,03(�C.,?�:6,8709�87�LG'&B�TU1.3�4689(�P8:>�T08,*�̀8190.3(a:61+98�$$%&'�8.�833033>0.7�5:87�3*6)+./�7*0�8108�NB33033>0.7�B108�A*100O�76�<0�83303309�8.9�)*+,*�+3�8:36�903,1+<09�+.7*0�B33033>0.7�[07*696:6/=(�)+7*�7*0�5:8.3�8.9�350,+;+,87+6.3�903,1+<+./�7*0�B33033>0.7�B108�A*100�C>516D0>0.73�8.97*0�-37+>8709�X637(�)*+,*�3*8::�<0�650.�76�+.350,7+6.�<=�7*0�5U<:+,?@0,7+6.�&'?�A*0�K+371+,7�[8.8/01�+3�*010<=�8U7*61+Z09�8.9�9+10,709�76�,8U30�76�<0�>890�8�510:+>+.81=�833033>0.7�16::(�83516>57:=�83�5633+<:0(�)*+,*�3*8::�3*6)�7*0�:673�8.9�:8.93�83303309(�7*0�8>6U.7�6;�<0.0;+7�76�8.9�7*0�833033>0.7�8/8+.3708,*�:67�61�581,0:�6;�:8.9�8.9�7*0�.U><01�6;�8..U8:�+.378::>0.73�+.76�)*+,*�7*0�833033>0.7�+3�9+D+909?@0,7+6.�&&?�X6>>0.,+./�)+7*�7*0�=081�+.�)*+,*�7*0�K+371+,7�+.,U13�6<:+/87+6.3�;61�7*0�58=>0.7�6;�8�5617+6.�6;�7*0�-37+>8709X637�6;�7*0�B33033>0.7�B108�A*100�C>516D0>0.73�810�8,bU+109�8.9�,6.371U,709�<=�7*0�K+371+,7(�7*0�B33033>0.73�3*8::�<058+9�+.�.67�>610�7*8.�7*+17=�N$'O�8..U8:�+.378::>0.73�58=8<:0�N0E,:U9+./�8.=�,85+78:+Z09�501+69O�87�7*0�38>0�7+>0�8.9�+.�7*038>0�>8..01�83�810�89JD8:610>�78E03�8.9�83�5103,1+<09�<=�X*85701�&_M(�a:61+98�@787U703c�516D+909c�*6)0D01(�7*87�+.�7*00D0.7�7*0�.6.�89JD8:610>�833033>0.7�>07*69�6;�,6::0,7+./�7*0�B33033>0.73�+3�.67�8D8+:8<:0�76�7*0�K+371+,7�+.�8.=�=081(�617*0�K+371+,7�90701>+.03�.67�76�U7+:+Z0�7*0�516D+3+6.3�6;�X*85701�&_M(�a?@?(�7*0�B33033>0.73�>8=�<0�,6::0,709�83�+3�67*01)+30501>+7709�<=�:8)?@0,7+6.�&L?�]56.�,6>5:07+6.�6;�7*0�510:+>+.81=�833033>0.7�16::(�7*0�T6819�3*8::�89657�8�3U<30bU0.7�1036:U7+6.�76�;+E�8�7+>08.9�5:8,0�87�)*+,*�7*0�6).013�6;�5165017=�76�<0�83303309�61�8.=�67*01�50136.3�+.70103709�7*010+.�>8=�855081�<0;610�7*0T6819�8.9�<0�*0819�83�76�7*0�51651+07=�8.9�89D+38<+:+7=�6;�7*0�B33033>0.73�61�7*0�>8S+./�6;�7*0�B33033>0.7�B108�A*100C>516D0>0.73(�7*0�,637�7*0106;(�7*0�>8..01�6;�58=>0.7�7*010;610(�61�7*0�8>6U.7�7*0106;�76�<0�83303309�8/8+.37�08,*5165017=�83�+>516D09?@0,7+6.�&$?�PU13U8.7�76�@0,7+6.�&M'?'G(�a:61+98�@787U703(�7*0�K+371+,7�[8.8/01�+3�*010<=�9+10,709�76�,8U30�7*+3�1036:U7+6.�76<0�5U<:+3*09�7)+,0�+.�8�.0)358501�6;�/0.018:�,+1,U:87+6.�)+7*+.�P8:>�T08,*�X6U.7=?PB@@-K(�BK\PA-K�8.9�-aa-XACd-�7*+3�&G7*�98=�6;�K0,0><01(�L'LL?BAA-@Aefffffffff@0,10781=IB33+378.7�@0,10781=Bd-RC4X\[[]RCAg�K-d-h\P[-RA�KC@A4CXAfffffffffX*8+150136.Id+,0�X*8+150136.Bd-RC4�X\[[]RCAg�K-d-h\P[-RA�KC@A4CXA&I&'J&M�L$JY$I''''Y$_ML$P
Page 112



CONSIDER RESOLUTION NO. 2023-01 
LEVYING ASSESSMENTS WITHIN 

AVENIR (AA3) 
 

TO BE DISTRIBUTED  
UNDER SEPARATE COVER 

Page 113



AVENIR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER REVISING THE RATES 
FOR CLUBHOUSE AMENITIES FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2022/2023 AND 
NOTICE OF REGULAR BOARD MEETING. 

 
The Board of Supervisors of the Avenir Community Development District will hold a 

Public Hearing (‘public hearing”) and Regular Board Meeting (“meeting”) on January 26, 2023, 
at 12:30 p.m. in the offices of Special District Services, Inc. located at The Oaks Center, 2501A 
Burns Road, Palm Beach Gardens, Florida 33410.  The purpose of the public hearing is for the 
Board to consider revising and updating the rates for clubhouse amenities.  A regular board 
meeting of the District will also be held at that time where the Board may consider any other 
business that may properly come before it.  Specific legal authority for the revisions to the rate 
referenced below is Section 190.35, Florida Statutes, and the Amenity Rules Handbook of the 
Avenir Community Development District.   

 
A copy of the agendas may be obtained from the District’s website or at the offices of the 

District Manager, 2501A Burns Road, Palm Beach Gardens, Florida 33410, Telephone: (561) 630-
4922 and/or toll free at 1-877-737-4922, during normal business hours.   

 
The public hearing and meeting are open to the public and will be conducted in accordance 

with the provisions of Florida law for community development districts.  The public hearing and 
meeting may be continued to a date, time, and place to be specified on the record at the meeting. 
There may be occasions when staff or Supervisors may participate by speaker telephone.   

 
 Any person requiring special accommodations at this meeting because of a disability or 
physical impairment should contact the District Office at (561) 630-4922 at least forty-eight (48) 
hours prior to the meeting.  If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the Florida Relay 
Service at 1-800-955-8770, for aid in contacting the District Office. 
 

Each person who decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any 
matter considered at the public hearing or meeting is advised that person will need a record of 
proceedings and that accordingly, the person may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the 
proceedings is made, including the testimony and evidence upon which such appeal is to be based. 

 
Meetings may be cancelled from time to time without advertised notice. 

  

Avenir Community Development District 
Fee Schedule FY 2022/2023 

CATEGORY PATRON 
NON-

PROFIT 
NON-

PATRON 
ANNUAL MEMBER CLUB FEE – Non-Residents  $      3,000   N/A   N/A  
LEASE APPLICATION PROCESSING FEE  $           50   N/A   N/A  
MEMBERSHIP CARD/FOB REPLACEMENT FEE  $           25   N/A   N/A  

Page 114



Afterhours Staffing Fee (After 10 p.m.)   $       55/hr        $       55/hr $       55/hr 
CLUB RENTAL FEES AND DEPOSITS 

EVENT HALL – Non-Refundable Fee (6 Hours)  $      1,500   $           1,500   $             2,250  
EVENT HALL – Non-Refundable Fee (All Day)  $      2,800   $           2,800   $             4,760  
EVENT HALL – Refundable Deposit  $         500   $              500   $                500  
CLUBROOM – Non-Refundable Fee (6 Hours)  $         650   $              650   $                950  
CLUBROOM – Non-Refundable Fee (All Day)  $      1,350   $           1,350   $             1,850  
CLUBROOM – Refundable Deposit  $         500   $              500   $                500  
CAFE PAVILION – Non-Refundable Fee (6 Hours)  $      1,000   $           1,250  $            1,250 
CAFE PAVILION – Refundable Deposit  $         250  $             250  $               250 
LARGE PAVILION – Non-Refundable Fee (6 Hours)  $         800  $          1,000  $            1,000 
LARGE PAVILION – Refundable Deposit  $         250   $             250  $               250 
SMALL PAVILION – Non-Refundable Fee (6 Hours)  $         500  $              625 $                625 
SMALL PAVILION – Refundable Deposit  $         250   $         250   $         250  
TENNIS COURT (2 hours)  $             5   $                  5   $                    5  

 
 

 
 
AVENIR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
www.avenircdd.org 
 
PUBLISH:  PALM BEACH DAILY BUSINESS REVIEW  01/12/23 & 01/19/23 
 

Page 115



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-02 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE AVENIR 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT MODIFYING AND 
SUPPLEMENTING CERTAIN RATES, FEES, AND CHARGES; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

 WHEREAS, the Avenir Community Development District (the “District”) is a local unit 
of special purpose government created and existing pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, 
being situated in Palm Beach Gardens, Palm Beach County, Florida; and 

WHEREAS, the District is the owner of the Avenir Clubhouse and Recreational 
Amenities, located at 12255 Avenir Road, Palm Beach Gardens, Florida (the “Club Property”); 
and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 190.011, Florida Statutes, the District is authorized to 
adopt and modify rules, regulations, and rates pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 120, Florida 
Statutes, prescribing the conduct of the business of the District; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Section 190.035, Florida Statutes, authorizes the District to prescribe, fix, 
establish, modify, and collect rates, fees and other charges for facilities and services furnished by 
the District; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution 2022-12, adopted by the District Board of 
Supervisors (the “District Board”) at its meeting of October 27, 2022, the Avenir Community 
Development District Fee Schedule, including applicable District rates, fees and charges was 
modified and re-adopted; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the District Board of Supervisors has determined that it is necessary to 
supplement the Avenir Community Development District Fee Schedule with rates and fees for 
after hours events, the use of certain outdoor recreational areas affiliated with the Avenir 
Clubhouse, and  

WHEREAS, the District’s Amenities Rules Handbook requires that the charges, rates, 
deposits, and fees applicable to the Club Property, and any changes thereto, be adopted by 
Resolution of the District Board of Supervisors in accordance with Section 190.035, Florida 
Statutes, and after a public hearing advertised at least ten (10) days prior to the public hearing; 
and 

 WHEREAS, the public hearing to consider the changes and re-adoption of the fee 
schedule pertaining to the use of the Club Property was advertised at least ten (10) days prior to 
the public hearing; and 

Page 116



 WHEREAS, after a public hearing held in accordance with Section 190.035, Florida 
Statutes, the Board of Supervisors desires to amend and re-adopt the fee schedule pertaining to 
the use of the Club Property. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
OF THE AVENIR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, THAT: 

 Section 1. The foregoing recitals are hereby incorporated as the findings of fact of 
the District Board of Supervisors. 

 Section 2. The Avenir Community Development District Fee Schedule is hereby 
amended and replaced with that which is attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit “A”.  
Any fees, rates, or charges not specifically modified by this Resolution shall be unchanged and 
shall remain in effect as previously adopted and approved by the District Board of Supervisors.  

 Section 3. The District Manager is hereby directed to take all actions consistent with 
this Resolution. 

 Section 4. All Resolutions or parts of Resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby 
repealed to the extent of such conflict. 

 Section 5. If any clause, section or other part or application of this Resolution is held 
by a court of competent jurisdiction to be unconstitutional or invalid, in part or as applied, it shall 
not affect the validity of the remaining portions or applications of this Resolution. 

 Section 6. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption.  Rentals 
previously reserved and paid for under the rates, charges, deposits and fees in effect prior to this 
Resolution shall be unaffected by the adoption of this Resolution. 

 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED in the Public Session of the Board of Supervisors of the 
Avenir Community Development District, this 26th day of January 2023. 

 

       AVENIR COMMUNITY  
Attest:       DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 

_________________________                                     ___________________________ 
Jason Pierman, Secretary                  Virginia Cepero, Chair  

 

 

Page 117



EXHIBIT “A” 

 

[to be amended by management before presenting] 

 

Avenir Community Development District 
Fee Schedule FY 2022/2023 

CATEGORY  PATRON  NON‐PROFIT  NON‐PATRON 

ANNUAL MEMBER CLUB FEE – Non‐Residents   $      3,000    N/A    N/A  

LEASE APPLICATION PROCESSING FEE   $           50    N/A    N/A  

MEMBERSHIP CARD/FOB REPLACEMENT FEE   $           25    N/A    N/A  

Afterhours Staffing Fee (After 10 p.m.)    $       55/hr         $       55/hr  $       55/hr 

CLUB RENTAL FEES AND DEPOSITS 

EVENT HALL – Non‐Refundable Fee (6 Hours)   $      1,500    $           1,500    $             2,250  

EVENT HALL – Non‐Refundable Fee (All Day)   $      2,800    $           2,800    $             4,760  

EVENT HALL – Refundable Deposit   $         500    $              500    $                500  

CLUBROOM – Non‐Refundable Fee (6 Hours)   $         650    $              650    $                950  

CLUBROOM – Non‐Refundable Fee (All Day)   $      1,350    $           1,350    $             1,850  

CLUBROOM – Refundable Deposit   $         500    $              500    $                500  

CAFE PAVILION – Non‐Refundable Fee (6 Hours)   $      1,000    $           1,250   $            1,250 

CAFE PAVILION – Refundable Deposit   $         250   $             250   $               250 

LARGE PAVILION – Non‐Refundable Fee (6 Hours)   $         800   $          1,000   $            1,000 

LARGE PAVILION – Refundable Deposit   $         250    $              250   $                250 

SMALL PAVILION – Non‐Refundable Fee (6 Hours)   $         500    $             625  $              625  

SMALL PAVILION – Refundable Deposit   $         250    $             275   $             275 

TENNIS COURT (2 hours)   $             5    $                  5    $                    5  

 

Last revised January 26, 2023 

 

* ANY FEES, RATES, AND CHARGES NOT SPECIFICALLY MODIFIED OR 
ADDRESSED IN THIS FEE SCHEDULE SHALL BE UNCHANGED AND SHALL 
REMAIN IN EFFECT AS PREVIOUSLY ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE AVENIR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT. 

Page 118



Page 119



Page 120



Page 121



Page 122



 
 

Monthly Managers Report 
January 18, 2022 

 
Date of Report:1/18/2022        __Submitted by: Richard Salvatore 
 
 
 

o Completed Tasks 
• Fitness services have begun at the clubhouse. 

 Weekly Schedule includes Monday & Saturday Yoga, Wednesday Zumba 
•  

o Ongoing Tasks 
• Partnerships with the individual builders are being established to help streamline the 

registration process for newly closed residents. 
• The maintenance cart had operational issues beginning the week of 1.2.23. 

o Cart was picked up for service & repair on 1.6.23, awaiting return. 
 

o Future Items 
• Installation of lighting along the newly poured sidewalk is needed for after-hours gym 

access. 
• Addition of the following items: 

o Storage shed near the pump station. 
o “Push to exit” button on Aerobics room door, for after-hours fire exit 

compliance.    
o Emergency callbox in the gym, for afterhours emergencies. 
o Security camera I the main entry hallway to provide security and surveillance for 

the only portion on the clubhouse without it. 
o Access card system on all perimeter gates, allowing for better security & to keep 

non-patrons from using amenities. 
o Access card system to the pickleball gate, allowing for better security & to keep 

non-patrons from using amenities. 
o Connecting fence & gate leading to the tennis courts, addition of access card 

system, allowing for better security & to keep non-patrons from using 
amenities. 

 
o Items for consideration 

• Play Academy as an approved vendor for Pickleball Services. 
• Tennis Preserve, LLC as an approved Vendor for Tennis services. 
• Fee schedule adjustment to allow for after hour rentals and for non-patron rentals of 

“Large Pavilion” and “Café Pavilion”. 
  

Page 123



 

 
 

Lifestyle Directors Report 
 

Date of Report: January 18, 2023              _____                 Submitted by: Gina Todd Sanchez 
 
Completed Events:  

• Pickleball & Tennis Open House – Saturday, January 14th  

BRRRR….the cold weather did not keep our Avenir patrons and guests from keeping up 
with their New Year’s Resolutions and participating in the pickleball and tennis open 
house with Play Academy.  Families, Adults, and children of all ages had the opportunity 
to participate in two separate 45 minute class instructions, learning the basics of tennis 
and pickleball. They then put their skills to the test against each other with team play.  
Shivering hands quickly turned to smiling faces as residents were able to meet and 
socialize with new neighbors in a friendly but competitive environment.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 124



 
 
Upcoming Events:  

• Screen on the Green – Friday, January 20th  
 
Patrons are invited to grab their superhero capes and join their 
neighbors on the Event Lawn for the showing of “DC League of 
Superpets” , all while enjoying some popcorn and refreshments.  
 
 

 
 

• “Fit Camp” Class – Saturday, January 28th  
Patrons and their guests are invited to the Fitness Center 
to enjoy an hour of fun and sweat! A great way to keep 
working on those New Years Resolutions.  Mele Fitness 
Solutions will be giving the class instruction.  

 
Fitness Classes:  

• The Yoga and Zumba Classes have commenced for the Avenir Patrons with Mele Fitness 
Soulutions.  Classes at the Fitness Center are available as follows: 

 
Yoga – Mondays 9:00am &  
Saturdays 8:00am 
 
Zumba – Wednesday 
6:30pm 
 
 
 
We have had a few patrons 

participate in the classes and we are looking forward to growing the program.  
 
Avenir Patron Rentals:  

• Patron Rental of Small Pool Pavilion  – December 3, 2022 
The small pool pavilion was rented by an Avenir patron to celebrate their son’s birthday.  
There were approx 20 guests in attendance.The 
celebration included a spread of food, drinks, 
and cake of course!  

 
 
 

Page 125



 
Field Operations Manager Report 

 
Date Submitted:  01\18\2023          ________                  Submitted by: Jorge Rodriguez 
 

Completed Tasks 
• Stainless steel satin finish commercial grade kick plates for inside doors have been installed. 
• The cracks in the hard floor tennis courts have been repaired, as of 1.16.23. 
• Installation of the east fountain fixture pump motor which replaced a burned out motor. 
• All tennis courts and pickleball court’s nets have been washed and restored to like-new 

condition. 
• All pool chairs and lounge chairs on the deck pool have been cleaned with a light pressure wash. 
• The beach pool feature fountain filters have been cleaned; the damaged ones replaced. 
• All the outside recessed lighting covers have been removed and cleaned, removing all bugs and 

webs.  
 
Weekly Projects 

• Garbage cans on the clubhouse grounds are checked and emptied daily 
• Garbage cans on Avenir drive are checked and emptied twice weekly. 
• All outside and inside building lights fixtures are inspected weekly. 
• 6 Clay Tennis Courts are raked and rolled every week 
• All 8 hard floor Tennis Courts and pickleball courts are blown daily to clean debris. 
• Club House grounds, sidewalks, parking lots, and playgrounds are blown daily. 
• A deep spider web cleaning around the Club House and the Playgrounds is completed weekly. 
• All pools, splash pad, spa, and fountains are maintained daily to health department standards. 
• Equipment on both playgrounds is tightened and adjusted twice monthly. 
• Exterior fans and pavilions are cleaned weekly. 

Current and Ongoing Projects 
• All 4 dog waste garbage stations have been received, installation on Avenir drive will begin this 

month. 
• The installation of the wild animal signs around the lakes is still ongoing. 
• Estimates have been received to replace ground lighting and outlets around various palm trees 

on clubhouse grounds that were damaged by the landscaping vendor. Landscaping vendor will 
be back billed for the repair and replacement of such appliances. 

Page 126



Page 127



Page 128



Page 129



CLUBHOUSE MANAGEMENT UPDATE 
 

TO BE DISTRIBUTED  
UNDER SEPARATE COVER 

Page 130


	Avenir Community Development District - January 26, 2023 Regular Board Meeting & Public Hearing's Book
	Agenda
	Proof of Publication
	December 15, 2022 Regular Board Meeting Minutes
	Public Hearing – Levy Non Ad-Valorem Assessments – Avenir (AA3)
	Consider Approval of Revised Fourth Amendment to the Fifth Supplemental  
Engineer’s Report (AA3)  
	Consider Approval of Preliminary First Supplemental Special Assessment 
Methodology Report – Infrastructure Project for Special Assessment Bonds (AA3)	

	Proof of Publication
	Consider Resolution No. 2023-01 – Levying Assessments within Avenir (AA3)

	Public Hearing – Clubhouse Rates
	Proof of Publication
	Consider Resolution No. 2023-02 – Amending Club Rates

	Consider Ratification of Agreement for Professional Services Relating to Avenir Spine  
Road 5 Seacoast Utility Authority Easements (Caulfield & Wheeler)
	Clubhouse Management Update




